WEST METRO FIRE-RESCUE
Notice of Board of Directors Meeting
February 10, 2021
6:30 PM Regular Board Meeting

A meeting of the West Metro Fire-Rescue District Board of Directors will be held:
Date and Time: Wednesday, February 10, 2021 at 6:30 PM
Location:

West Metro Fire Station 3
4251 Xylon Avenue North
New Hope, MN 55428

For additional information, contact the Board Secretary, Anne Norris at 763-531-1000.
Posted at: Crystal City Hall, West Metro Fire Station 3, and New Hope City Hall.
Dated: February 4, 2021

West Metro Fire-Rescue District
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AGENDA
February 10, 2021
6:30 PM Regular Meeting

A. Call to order by Board President.
B. Roll Call
C. Minutes
1. Approve the December 9, 2020 Board of Directors Meeting Minutes
2. Approve the December 9, 2020 Executive Session Minutes
D. Open Forum
E. Consent Agenda
1. Approve November Expenditures totaling $160,677.16
2. Approve December Expenditures totaling $253,312.20
3. Approve 2020 Pension Contribution of $191,192.60
4. Approve LMCIT Insurance Premiums
5. Approve Resolution 2021-1 engaging MMKR to complete the 2020 Audit
F. Chief’s Report
1. Chief’s Report
2. Preliminary Quarter 4 Financial Report
G. Old Business
1. Review Feedback from City Councils/Approve Plan for Major Apparatus Replacement
2. Revision of Chief’s Performance Evaluation Discussion
H. New Business
1. Accept Public Assistance Grant
2. Approve 2021 Chief’s Goals
3. Approve Updates to the Employee Handbook
4. Approve Capital Purchases
a. Fire Wall
I.

Other Matters and Announcements
1. Regular Meeting of the West Metro Board of Directors April 14, 2021 at 6:30 PM

J.

Adjournment

C-1 Minutes

WEST METRO FIRE-RESCUE DISTRICT
Board of Directors Meeting Minutes
December 9, 2020
Draft

A. Call to order
President Gary Laurant called the regular meeting of the West Metro Fire-Rescue District Board of
Directors to order at 6:30 p.m. on December 9, 2020, via WebEx.
B. Roll Call – The following Directors were present:
Gary Laurant
President
Anne Norris
City Manager, City of Crystal, Secretary
Kirk McDonald
City Manager, City of New Hope, Vice President
John Elder
Council, City of New Hope
Brendan Banks
Council, City of Crystal
Jeff Kolb
Citizen Representative, City of Crystal
Marc Berris
Citizen Representative, City of New Hope
The following staff members were present:
Fire Chief Sarah Larson
Assistant Fire Chief Josh Kunde
Assistant Fire Chief Joel Nelson
Assistant Fire Chief Adam Wodtke
Deputy Fire Marshal Shelby Wolf
District Counsel Joel Jamnik
Recording Secretary Amy Juntunen
C. Minutes
October 14, 2020 Board of Directors meeting minutes. Strike “Annual” from the title. Motion by
Elder, second by Berris to approve the October 14, 2020 minutes with the change noted above.
Motion carried.
D. Open Forum
E. Consent Agenda
1. Approve September expenditures totaling $218,735.77
2. Approve October expenditures totaling $178,543.85
3. Approve Resolution 2020-5 Accepting Donations
4. Approve Resolution 2020-6 Credit Card Purchases
5. Approve Resolution 2020-7 Fire Chief ads 2021 Purchasing Agent
6. Approve LMCIT Liability Coverage-Waiver Form
Motion by Banks, second by Norris to approve the consent agenda as presented. Motion carried.
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F. Chief’s Report
From January 1-November 30, 2020 there have been 1697 calls for service, 729 in Crystal, 912 in
New Hope and 56 Mutual Aid calls, with an estimated fire loss of $1.28 million.
Chief Larson has continued to attend monthly meetings with the City Managers and Battalion Chiefs,
as well as attending senior staff meetings at both cities. Full-time staff members have been split up
to limit exposure, with Nelson and Wodtke working from home. New Councilmember orientation
was held last night for Crystal. Another will be planned for New Hope.
Duty crew staffing continues through the pandemic with split night shifts. The daytime duty crew is
responding out of Station 2.
In a correction to last month’s report, the State Aid for the pension fund received is $263,162.15, an
increase of over $18,000 from 2019. The total pension expenditure for 2020 is $458,641.12,
previously reported at $385,058.46. This makes the WMFRD portion of the expenditure
$195,478.97, not $121,896.31. The 2020 budget contribution to the special pension fund is
$180,000, leaving an anticipated fund balance of approximately $149,208.75.
The Chief reviewed the budget to actual information, detailing the areas over budget due to COVID,
as well as areas under budget.
Since the beginning of the pandemic, 11 firefighters have tested positive and 8 others have
quarantined due to symptoms or potential exposure. At one point, 16 firefighters were quarantined
simultaneously. Three firefighters had significant illness with COVID while the rest of the cases were
mild symptoms or asymptomatic. No firefighters have been hospitalized due to COVID
With the recent surge in positive cases and the Governor resuming shutdowns, training and drills
have been canceled. Firefighters are currently excused from training and drills but expected to
attend 40% of “all-calls”.
Most public events have been suspended due to COVID, excepting Birthday Brigades and the Be a
Santa to a Senior program, which collects gifts for local senior citizens. Collections will continue
through December 11, with deliveries made the following week after packages have been
quarantined for several days. There have been 256 Birthday Brigades from April-November 2020.
The December blood drive has been canceled.
Online training through Target Solutions is now available to firefighters on several topics. Each unit
has videos, slides and an exam. Required training will be pushed via this platform while in-person
training is suspended. In total, 2,513 hours of training were completed by firefighters during the
COVID-19 pandemic. The 2021 West Suburban Fire Academy will begin January 25, 2021. Some of
the curriculum has been rearranged to allow flexibility to move to online classes as needed and
delays the hand-on training required in Firefighter I/II until mid-March.
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All apprentice firefighters passed the Fire Apparatus Operator training in October, successfully
completing the program to be promoted from apprentice to firefighter. The promotions occurred
on November 28, 2020. A promotion banquet will be scheduled at a future date to recognize the
new firefighters.
Staff has been meeting with neighboring fire departments to plan mutual aid response in the event
that any department is unable to respond to its own calls. All of the District’s neighbors have
committed to providing services in the event WMFRD cannot respond to calls. Likewise, WMFRD
has committed to supporting our neighbors as necessary. The state Fire Marshal has a mapping
system to track whether help is needed from other agencies.
Staff have applied for two FEMA public assistance grants. None have been paid out yet and it’s
likely the payout deadline currently set at January 21, 2021 will be extended.
Staff continues to coordinate purchases of PPE for member cities. The District is well stocked.
The LED lighting installation project is 99% complete in all three stations and is very noticeable.
The mobile radios are in use now that the correct encryption has been provided.
Engine 21 required a new turbo, which cost $6,000.
There have been 639 fire inspections/plan reviews/meetings completed since January 1, 2020, along
with 200 re-inspections. Existing commercial inspections were put on temporary hold effective
November 16 due to increased cases of COVID-19. New construction inspections continue, as is
updating the information in the FDM database. A number of fire investigations are in process.
All in-person fire prevention education is on hold. Staff has developed a virtual program and six
schools are scheduled to start this program in January and go through mid-February. This program
includes virtual demonstrations and interactive children’s activities.
Twelve new adopt-a-hydrant requests from residents have been received.
Overall call volume is down in 2020, likely because the District is no longer responding to nonpriority medical calls.
The third quarter financial report was included in the meeting packet.
G. Old Business
1. Chief’s Evaluation. The Board met in executive session prior to this meeting. Motion by Berris,
second by Norris to approve an increase in salary for COLA and merit. Motion carried.
2. Continued Discussion of Major Apparatus Report. Chief Larson reviewed costs to purchase and
lease for years 2024-2025, or to replace the four engines at 13 and 14 years old, and the pros and cons
of lease vs. purchase. It is up to the Board, not the City Councils, to make the final decision on when to
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purchase or lease. After review and discussion, the consensus of the Board is to lease the engines in
2022 and 2023 and to ensure that all are sister-trucks for efficiency and to ask both city managers to
review the recommendation with each council.
H. New Business
1. Approve 2021 Meeting Schedule. Meetings are scheduled for February 10, April 14, May 12,
July 14, August 11, October 13, and December 8. Motion by McDonald, second by Norris to approve
the meeting schedule as presented. Motion carried.
2. Accept Additional Funding from the Cities of Crystal and New Hope. WMFRD requested
additional funding from the member cities as part of the CARES Act funds the cities received to
cover 25% of costs exceeding normal operations due to the pandemic. Total received is $95,879
from Crystal and $97,466 from New Hope. Motion by Banks, second by Elder to accept the
reimbursements to cover duty crew and officer costs. Motion carried.
3. Approve Revision to Capital Fund policy. The District’s financial advisor has revised the capital
fund policy to add that proceeds from the sale of major apparatus will be reserved to
purchase/lease new major apparatus or to pay down an existing lease. Motion by McDonald,
second by Elder to approve the change to the fund policy statement. Motion carried.
4. Approve Resolution 2020-8 Board’s Representatives on the West Metro Fire Relief Association
Board. Motion by Norris, second by Kolb to approve resolution 2020-8 as presented. Motion
carried.
5. Approve Resolution 2020-9 Carryover and Commitment of Capital Funds. Motion by Norris,
second by Berris to approve resolution 2020-9 as presented, carrying over a total of $422,000.
Motion carried.
6. Approve 2021 Health Insurance rates. Insurance rates for 2021 are a 6.7% increase over the
2020 rate. The 2021 operating budget covers this increase. Motion by McDonald, second by Norris
to approve the 2021 health insurance rates as presented. Motion carried.
7. Approve 2021 COLA. Staff proposed a 3% COLA increase based on the New Hope COLA
increase. Motion by Elder, second by Norris to approve the COLA at 3%. Motion carried.
8. Approve 2021 Paid, On-call Pension. Staff recommends a 3% increase to paid, on-call pensions
in 2021. The pension is a major tool for recruiting and retaining firefighters. Motion by McDonald,
second by Norris to approve the increase in the paid, on-call pension as presented. Motion carried.
9. Approve Employee Handbook revisions. The current WMFRD handbook was approved in June
2011 and includes annual revisions that have occurred since then. This year’s update includes new
definitions and minor changes. Motion by Berris, second Elder to approve the revisions to the
employee handbook as presented. Motion carried.
I.

Other Matters and Announcements
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The next regular meeting of the West Metro Board of Directors will be held February 10, 2021 at
6:30 p.m. A subcommittee may be formed to review the Chief’s evaluation process.
J.

Adjournment
There being no further business, motion by Elder, second by Banks to adjourn. The meeting
adjourned at 7:45 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,
Amy Juntunen
Recording Secretary

C-2 Minutes

WEST METRO FIRE-RESCUE DISTRICT BOARD
EXECUTIVE SESSION MINUTES
DECEMBER 9, 2020
Present:

Gary Laurant, Board President and 7th Board member
Kirk McDonald, Board Vice President and New Hope City Manager
Brendan Banks, Crystal Council representative
John Elder, New Hope Council representative
Marc Berris, New Hope Citizen representative
Jeff Kolb, Crystal Citizen representative
Anne Norris, Board Secretary and Crystal City Manager

Also Present:

Sarah Larson, WMFRD Chief
Joel Jamnik, District Attorney

Call to Order:

President Laurant called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m. and
explained the meeting would be closed for the purpose of
conducting Chief Larson’s 2020 performance evaluation, as
provided for in Minnesota Statutes, 13D.05, Subd. 3a. President
Laurant closed the meeting at 6:03 p.m. to conduct Chief Larson’s
evaluation.

Discussion:

The Board discussed Chief Larson’s 2020 performance evaluation.

Adjournment:

Motion by Board member Elder, seconded by Board member Berris
to adjourn the meeting. Motion carried.
President Laurant adjourned the closed session at 6:30 p.m.
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E-1 Consent

Check Detail
November 2020
Type

Num

Date

Name

Account

Liability Check

11/10/2020

QuickBooks Payroll Service

1-61500 · Regular Salaries

Liability Check

11/10/2020

QuickBooks Payroll Service

1-02110 · Direct Deposit Liabilities

Check

11/16/2020

Service Charge

1-87700 · Financial Services

Liability Check

11/24/2020

QuickBooks Payroll Service

1-61500 · Regular Salaries

Liability Check

11/24/2020

QuickBooks Payroll Service

1-02110 · Direct Deposit Liabilities

Original Amount
99.75
40,522.33
114.54
94.50
38,762.76

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

11/13/2020

Cintas

1-84700 · Maintenance

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

11/13/2020

Campbell Knutson

1-80600 · Legal Fees

672.00

99.67

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

11/13/2020

Auto Zone

1-84600 · Vehicle Repairs

111.49

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

11/13/2020

City of Crystal Utility

1-83400 · Water\Sewer

494.90

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

11/13/2020

AT & T Mobility

1-81800 · Communication & Technology

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

11/13/2020

MN Fire Service Certification Board

1-86800 · Training

1,160.00

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

11/13/2020

AEM Financial Solutions

1-87700 · Financial Services

3,263.00

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

11/13/2020

AEM Financial Solutions

1-87700 · Financial Services

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

11/13/2020

Local Government Information Systems

1-81800 · Communication & Technology

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

11/13/2020

Sun Life Financial

1-12800 · Prepaid Expenses

355.48

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

11/13/2020

Sun Life Financial

1-12800 · Prepaid Expenses

250.80

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

11/13/2020

Sun Life Financial

1-12800 · Prepaid Expenses

17.50

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

11/13/2020

Auto Services Inc.

1-84600 · Vehicle Repairs

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

11/13/2020

Hennepin County Information Technology De

1-81800 · Communication & Technology

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

11/25/2020

Century Promotional Advertising LLC

1-77000 · Turn Out Gear

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

11/25/2020

CMT Diversified Janitorial

1-84000 · Maintenance

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

11/25/2020

Frattallone's Hardware Store

1-84200 · Building Repairs

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

11/25/2020

Jefferson Fire & Safety, Inc.

1-84400 · Equipment Repairs

204.35

450.00
4,488.00

27.16
1,762.24
19.50
988.80
54.45
185.46

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

11/25/2020

Jefferson Fire & Safety, Inc.

2-96005 · Restrictions-Equipment

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

11/25/2020

ALEX AIR

1-84400 · Equipment Repairs

1,234.28

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

11/25/2020

City of Crystal-Ins & Fuel

1-76000 · Motor Fuels

1,294.51

246.50

Check

EFT

11/01/2020

HealthPartners

1-63800 · Health Insurance

6,666.09

Check

EFT

11/01/2020

US Bank

1-86800 · Training

1,425.00

Check

EFT

11/01/2020

US Bank

1-76000 · Motor Fuels

Check

EFT

11/01/2020

US Bank

1-87700 · Financial Services

49.00

Check

EFT

11/01/2020

US Bank

1-87700 · Financial Services

109.29

Check

EFT

11/01/2020

US Bank

1-84600 · Vehicle Repairs

Check

EFT

11/01/2020

US Bank

1-74000 · Miscellaneous Operating

Check

EFT

11/01/2020

US Bank

1-76000 · Motor Fuels

Check

EFT

11/01/2020

US Bank

1-78000 · COVID-19 Expenses

Check

EFT

11/05/2020

XCEL ENERGY

1-83200 · Electric

1,963.26

Check

EFT

11/09/2020

Citi Bank

1-74000 · Miscellaneous Operating

1,505.31

27.70

37.62
787.08
26.24
6,099.80

Check

EFT

11/09/2020

Citi Bank

1-84400 · Equipment Repairs

Check

EFT

11/09/2020

Citi Bank

1-70500 · Office Supplies

45.00

Check

EFT

11/09/2020

Citi Bank

1-74000 · Miscellaneous Operating

157.92

Check

EFT

11/09/2020

Citi Bank

1-78000 · COVID-19 Expenses

503.92

Check

EFT

11/09/2020

Citi Bank

1-84600 · Vehicle Repairs

Check

EFT

11/09/2020

Citi Bank

1-72500 · Cleaning

Check

EFT

11/12/2020

Comcast

1-81800 · Communication & Technology

31.25

31.98
8.58
40.86

Liability Check

EFT

11/12/2020

United States Treasury

1-32801 · 941 WH

4,850.67

Liability Check

EFT

11/12/2020

United States Treasury

1-32101 · FICA - ER

1,582.20

Liability Check

EFT

11/12/2020

United States Treasury

1-32201 · FICA - EE

1,582.20

Liability Check

EFT

11/12/2020

United States Treasury

1-32601 · MEDICARE - ER

Liability Check

EFT

11/12/2020

United States Treasury

1-32701 · MEDICARE - EE

Liability Check

EFT

11/12/2020

Minnesota Dept of Revenue

1-33001 · STATE W/H

2,109.00

Check

EFT

11/12/2020

PERA

1-36001 · PERA

8,540.07

Check

EFT

11/12/2020

Alerus - reimb

1-37050 · Withheld HSA

Check

EFT

11/15/2020

Allstream

1-81800 · Communication & Technology

Check

EFT

11/16/2020

City of New Hope - UB

1-83400 · Water\Sewer

Check

EFT

11/20/2020

Culligan

1-74000 · Miscellaneous Operating

10.27

Check

EFT

11/20/2020

Culligan

1-74000 · Miscellaneous Operating

86.68

Check

EFT

11/20/2020

Culligan

1-74000 · Miscellaneous Operating

44.90

Check

EFT

11/21/2020

USBEquipFinance

1-85400 · Office Equipment Rental

191.13

776.26
776.26

835.00
64.17
196.98

Check

EFT

11/23/2020

Verizon Wireless

1-81800 · Communication & Technology

Liability Check

EFT

11/25/2020

United States Treasury

1-32801 · 941 WH

4,762.67

Liability Check

EFT

11/25/2020

United States Treasury

1-32101 · FICA - ER

1,450.84

Liability Check

EFT

11/25/2020

United States Treasury

1-32201 · FICA - EE

1,450.84

Liability Check

EFT

11/25/2020

United States Treasury

1-32601 · MEDICARE - ER

Liability Check

EFT

11/25/2020

United States Treasury

1-32701 · MEDICARE - EE

Liability Check

EFT

11/25/2020

Minnesota Dept of Revenue

1-33001 · STATE W/H

1,999.00

Check

EFT

11/25/2020

PERA

1-36001 · PERA

8,540.07

Check

EFT

11/25/2020

Alerus - reimb

1-37050 · Withheld HSA

835.00

Check

EFT

11/26/2020

Center Point Energy

1-83600 · Gas

179.70

Check

EFT

11/26/2020

Center Point Energy

1-83600 · Gas

698.67

Check

EFT

11/26/2020

Center Point Energy

1-83600 · Gas

163.63

Check

EFT

11/27/2020

Alerus - Billing

1-63800 · Health Insurance

Check

EFT

11/28/2020

Verizon Wireless

1-81800 · Communication & Technology
Total

595.17

745.58
745.58

24.00
350.75
$

160,677.16
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WEST METRO FIRE-RESCUE DISTRICT

Profit Loss Budget vs. Actual
November 2020
November 2020

YTD

Budget

% of Budget
Used YTD

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
50100 · Operating Revenue
50110 · Intergovernmental Grants

169,220.84

1,861,429.15

2,030,650.00

91.67%

0.00

5,292.00

0.00

100.0%

193,881.00

212,626.10

0.00

100.0%

0.00

105.94

0.00

100.0%

363,101.84

2,079,453.19

2,030,650.00

102.4%

61500 · Regular Salaries

57,898.28

677,104.69

749,000.00

90.4%

62000 · Part-time Volunteers

48,920.27

529,135.72

440,000.00

120.26%

62200 · PERA Coordinator

10,248.10

119,848.77

132,600.00

90.38%

4,554.88

49,972.32

44,500.00

112.3%

50115 · Refunds & Reimbursements
51000 · Miscellaneous Income
Total Income
Expense
60000 · Personnel

62800 · Social Security & Medicare
63500 · Health Savings Accounts
64200 · Health Savings Accounts
63800 · Health Insurance
63900 · Long Term Disability
64000 · Life Insurance

0.00

4,500.00

5,000.00

90.0%

6,494.49

71,333.79

88,550.00

80.56%

0.00

0.00

4,000.00

0.0%

17.50

210.00

400.00

52.5%

64500 · Workers Comp Insurance

0.00

93,580.00

100,000.00

93.58%

65000 · Unemployment Insurance

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.0%

6,511.99

169,623.79

197,950.00

85.69%

0.00

5,080.52

9,000.00

56.45%

128,133.52

1,550,765.81

1,573,050.00

98.58%

31.25

1,311.15

2,500.00

52.45%

8.58

2,539.86

2,400.00

105.83%

2,592.16

8,161.20

10,000.00

81.61%

0.00

1,109.62

3,500.00

31.7%

1,348.45

14,371.16

23,000.00

62.48%

Total 63500 · Health Savings Accounts
65500 · Uniforms
Total 60000 · Personnel
70000 · Supplies
70500 · Office Supplies
72500 · Cleaning
74000 · Miscellaneous Operating
75500 · Tools & Equipment
76000 · Motor Fuels
77000 · Turn Out Gear

19.50

12,683.42

12,000.00

105.7%

6,603.72

38,557.88

0.00

100.0%

0.00

2,717.31

6,000.00

45.29%

10,603.66

81,451.60

59,400.00

137.12%

80200 · Consultant

0.00

0.00

2,000.00

0.0%

80600 · Legal Fees

672.00

3,371.00

9,000.00

37.46%

0.00

0.00

30,000.00

0.0%

672.00

3,371.00

41,000.00

8.22%

0.00

10.32

400.00

2.58%

7,505.54

99,226.69

110,000.00

90.21%

7,505.54

99,237.01

110,400.00

89.89%

78000 · COVID-19 Expenses
79000 · Fire Prevention Supplies
Total 70000 · Supplies
80000 · Service

80800 · Medical Exams
Total 80000 · Service
81000 · Communications & Delivery
81400 · Postage and Delivery
81800 · Communication & Technology
Total 81000 · Communications & Delivery
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WEST METRO FIRE-RESCUE DISTRICT

Profit Loss Budget vs. Actual
November 2020
November 2020

YTD

Budget

% of Budget
Used YTD

83000 · Utilities
83200 · Electric

1,963.26

17,383.20

26,000.00

66.86%

691.88

4,160.79

6,000.00

69.35%

1,042.00

11,327.43

20,000.00

56.64%

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.0%

3,697.14

32,871.42

52,000.00

63.21%

1,088.47

12,721.85

14,000.00

90.87%

54.45

7,632.72

10,000.00

76.33%

84400 · Equipment Repairs

476.96

21,356.34

16,000.00

133.48%

84600 · Vehicle Repairs

208.25

34,039.91

35,000.00

97.26%

1,828.13

75,750.82

75,000.00

101.0%

191.13

2,632.90

6,000.00

43.88%

191.13

2,632.90

6,000.00

43.88%

86200 · Dues and Subscriptions

0.00

2,936.41

2,500.00

117.46%

86400 · Awards

0.00

0.00

3,000.00

0.0%

2,585.00

9,755.62

30,000.00

32.52%

0.00

3,375.00

5,000.00

67.5%

2,585.00

16,067.03

40,500.00

39.67%

87400 · Printing

0.00

0.00

300.00

0.0%

87500 · Insurance

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.0%

83400 · Water\Sewer
83600 · Gas
83800 · Refuse
Total 83000 · Utilities
84000 · Maintenance
84000 · Maintenance - Other
84200 · Building Repairs

Total 84000 · Maintenance
85000 · Rent
85400 · Office Equipment Rental
Total 85000 · Rent
86000 · Dues, Subscriptions & Training

86800 · Training
86900 · Licenses & Permits
Total 86000 · Dues, Subscriptions & Training
87000 · Miscellaneous

87700 · Financial Services

4,180.08

55,842.33

53,000.00

105.36%

87999 · Budget Reserve

0.00

0.00

20,000.00

0.0%

Total 87000 · Miscellaneous

4,180.08

55,842.33

73,300.00

76.18%

159,396.20

1,917,989.92

2,030,650.00

94.45%

Net Ordinary Income

203,705.64

161,463.27

0.00

100.0%

Net Income

203,705.64

161,463.27

0.00

100.0%

Total Expense

Page 2 of 2

WEST METRO FIRE-RESCUE DISTRICT

E-2 Consent

Check Detail
December 2020

Type

Num

Date

Name

Account

Liability Check

12/09/2020

QuickBooks Payroll Service

1-61500 · Regular Salaries

Liability Check

12/09/2020

QuickBooks Payroll Service

1-02110 · Direct Deposit Liabilities

Check

12/14/2020

Service Charge

1-87700 · Financial Services

Liability Check

12/23/2020

QuickBooks Payroll Service

1-61500 · Regular Salaries

Liability Check

12/23/2020

QuickBooks Payroll Service

1-02110 · Direct Deposit Liabilities

Original Amount
84.00
43,196.41
117.62
94.50
40,840.94

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

12/11/2020

Campbell Knutson

1-80600 · Legal Fees

192.00

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

12/11/2020

ALEX AIR

1-84400 · Equipment Repairs

150.00

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

12/11/2020

Minnesota Fire Service Certification Boar

1-86800 · Training

145.00

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

12/11/2020

AT & T Mobility

1-81800 · Communication & Technology

204.35

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

12/11/2020

North Memorial Health

1-86800 · Training

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

12/11/2020

Innovative Office Solutions, LLC

1-70500 · Office Supplies

673.89

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

12/11/2020

AEM Financial Solutions

1-87700 · Financial Services

450.00

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

12/11/2020

ALEX AIR

1-84400 · Equipment Repairs

879.00

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

12/11/2020

MacQueen Emergency Group

1-84600 · Vehicle Repairs

438.75

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

12/11/2020

Auto Zone

1-84600 · Vehicle Repairs

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

12/11/2020

Hennepin County Information Technology De

1-81800 · Communication & Technology

1,762.24

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

12/11/2020

AEM Financial Solutions

1-87700 · Financial Services

3,263.00

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

12/11/2020

Sun Life Financial

1-12800 · Prepaid Expenses

359.68

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

12/11/2020

Sun Life Financial

1-12800 · Prepaid Expenses

17.50

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

12/11/2020

Sun Life Financial

1-12800 · Prepaid Expenses

250.80

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

12/24/2020

CMT Diversified Janitorial

1-12800 · Prepaid Expenses

988.80

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

12/24/2020

Fire Safety U.S.A.

1-84600 · Vehicle Repairs

141.00

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

12/24/2020

Cummins Sales and Service

1-84600 · Vehicle Repairs

8,321.94

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

12/24/2020

Lighten Up, LLC

3-88002 · Building Equipment

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

12/24/2020

Cintas

1-84700 · Maintenance

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

12/24/2020

Lighten Up, LLC

3-88002 · Building Equipment

26,103.80

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

12/24/2020

Lighten Up, LLC

3-88002 · Building Equipment

11,182.11

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

12/24/2020

MacQueen Emergency Group

3-88004 · Personal Protection Equipment

38,063.48

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

12/24/2020

Aspen Mills

1-65500 · Uniforms

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

12/24/2020

Viking Trophies, Inc

1-86400 · Awards

10.00

120.35

17,944.38
79.80

154.00
1,675.33

Bill Pmt -Check

Bill.com

12/24/2020

City of Crystal-Ins & Fuel

1-76000 · Motor Fuels

Check

EFT

12/01/2020

US Bank

1-76000 · Motor Fuels

967.12
25.17

Check

EFT

12/01/2020

US Bank

1-87700 · Financial Services

49.00

Check

EFT

12/01/2020

US Bank

1-87700 · Financial Services

95.28

Check

EFT

12/01/2020

US Bank

1-86200 · Dues and Subscriptions

30.20

Check

EFT

12/01/2020

US Bank

1-74000 · Miscellaneous Operating

55.39

Check

EFT

12/01/2020

US Bank

1-84600 · Vehicle Repairs

37.62

Check

EFT

12/01/2020

US Bank

1-76000 · Motor Fuels

23.57

Check

EFT

12/01/2020

US Bank

1-65500 · Uniforms

60.32

Check

EFT

12/01/2020

US Bank

1-86800 · Training

602.00

Check

EFT

12/01/2020

US Bank

1-76000 · Motor Fuels

Check

EFT

12/01/2020

US Bank

1-79000 · Fire Prevention Supplies

Check

EFT

12/01/2020

US Bank

1-74000 · Miscellaneous Operating

Check

EFT

12/01/2020

US Bank

1-79000 · Fire Prevention Supplies

25.76
340.00
32.25
(1,197.01)

Check

EFT

12/01/2020

HealthPartners

1-63800 · Health Insurance

Check

EFT

12/09/2020

Citi Bank

1-84600 · Vehicle Repairs

5,055.32

Check

EFT

12/09/2020

Citi Bank

1-76000 · Motor Fuels

Check

EFT

12/09/2020

Citi Bank

1-84600 · Vehicle Repairs

Check

EFT

12/09/2020

Citi Bank

1-70500 · Office Supplies

Check

EFT

12/09/2020

Citi Bank

1-78000 · COVID-19 Expenses

Check

EFT

12/09/2020

Citi Bank

1-84600 · Vehicle Repairs

Check

EFT

12/09/2020

XCEL ENERGY

1-83200 · Electric

1,708.65

Liability Check

EFT

12/10/2020

United States Treasury

1-32801 · 941 WH

5,106.67

Liability Check

EFT

12/10/2020

United States Treasury

1-32101 · FICA - ER

1,777.92

Liability Check

EFT

12/10/2020

United States Treasury

1-32201 · FICA - EE

1,777.92

Liability Check

EFT

12/10/2020

United States Treasury

1-32601 · MEDICARE - ER

Liability Check

EFT

12/10/2020

United States Treasury

1-32701 · MEDICARE - EE

Liability Check

EFT

12/10/2020

Minnesota Dept of Revenue

1-33001 · STATE W/H

2,134.00
8,553.67

113.00
30.00
579.96
37.97
348.80
64.26

822.67
822.67

Check

EFT

12/10/2020

PERA

1-36001 · PERA

Check

EFT

12/10/2020

Alerus - reimb

1-37050 · Withheld HSA

Check

EFT

12/12/2020

Comcast

1-81800 · Communication & Technology

Check

EFT

12/16/2020

City of New Hope - UB

1-83400 · Water\Sewer

Check

EFT

12/16/2020

Allstream

1-81800 · Communication & Technology

64.17

Check

EFT

12/20/2020

Culligan

1-74000 · Miscellaneous Operating

10.27

Check

EFT

12/20/2020

Culligan

1-74000 · Miscellaneous Operating

61.21

Check

EFT

12/20/2020

Culligan

1-74000 · Miscellaneous Operating

50.90

Check

EFT

12/21/2020

USBEquipFinance

1-85400 · Office Equipment Rental

153.20

835.00
40.86
212.05

Liability Check

EFT

12/24/2020

United States Treasury

1-32801 · 941 WH

4,735.67

Liability Check

EFT

12/24/2020

United States Treasury

1-32101 · FICA - ER

1,587.29

Liability Check

EFT

12/24/2020

United States Treasury

1-32201 · FICA - EE

1,587.29

Liability Check

EFT

12/24/2020

United States Treasury

1-32601 · MEDICARE - ER

777.50

Liability Check

EFT

12/24/2020

United States Treasury

1-32701 · MEDICARE - EE

777.50
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WEST METRO FIRE-RESCUE DISTRICT

Check Detail
December 2020

Type

Num

Date

Name

Account

Original Amount

Liability Check

EFT

12/24/2020

Minnesota Dept of Revenue

1-33001 · STATE W/H

1,980.00

Check

EFT

12/24/2020

PERA

1-36001 · PERA

8,540.07

Check

EFT

12/24/2020

Alerus - reimb

1-37050 · Withheld HSA

835.00

Check

EFT

12/24/2020

Verizon Wireless

1-81800 · Communication & Technology

595.17

Check

EFT

12/28/2020

Center Point Energy

1-83600 · Gas

355.76

Check

EFT

12/28/2020

Center Point Energy

1-83600 · Gas

959.51

Check

EFT

12/28/2020

Center Point Energy

1-83600 · Gas

323.27

Check

EFT

12/29/2020

Verizon Wireless

1-81800 · Communication & Technology

821.69

Check

EFT

12/29/2020

Alerus - Billing

1-63800 · Health Insurance
Total

24.00
$

253,312.20
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WEST METRO FIRE-RESCUE DISTRICT

Profit Loss Budget vs. Actual
December 2020
December 2020

YTD

Budget

% of Budget
Used YTD

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
50100 · Operating Revenue
50110 · Intergovernmental Grants

169,220.81

2,030,649.96

2,030,650.00

100.0%

0.00

5,292.00

0.00

100.0%

4,790.22

217,416.32

0.00

100.0%

0.00

105.94

0.00

100.0%

174,011.03

2,253,464.22

2,030,650.00

110.97%

61500 · Regular Salaries

57,944.36

735,049.05

749,000.00

98.14%

62000 · Part-time Volunteers

54,277.39

583,413.11

440,000.00

132.59%

62200 · PERA Coordinator

10,256.26

130,105.03

132,600.00

98.12%

4,965.38

54,937.70

44,500.00

123.46%

50115 · Refunds & Reimbursements
51000 · Miscellaneous Income
Total Income
Expense
60000 · Personnel

62800 · Social Security & Medicare
63500 · Health Savings Accounts
64200 · Health Savings Accounts

0.00

4,500.00

5,000.00

90.0%

4,883.72

76,217.51

88,550.00

86.07%

63900 · Long Term Disability

0.00

0.00

4,000.00

0.0%

64000 · Life Insurance

0.00

210.00

400.00

52.5%

64500 · Workers Comp Insurance

0.00

93,580.00

100,000.00

93.58%

65000 · Unemployment Insurance

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.0%

4,883.72

174,507.51

197,950.00

88.16%

214.32

5,294.84

9,000.00

58.83%

132,541.43

1,683,307.24

1,573,050.00

107.01%

711.86

2,023.01

2,500.00

80.92%

0.00

2,539.86

2,400.00

105.83%

210.02

8,371.22

10,000.00

83.71%

0.00

1,109.62

3,500.00

31.7%

1,071.62

15,442.78

23,000.00

67.14%

63800 · Health Insurance

Total 63500 · Health Savings Accounts
65500 · Uniforms
Total 60000 · Personnel
70000 · Supplies
70500 · Office Supplies
72500 · Cleaning
74000 · Miscellaneous Operating
75500 · Tools & Equipment
76000 · Motor Fuels
77000 · Turn Out Gear

0.00

12,683.42

12,000.00

105.7%

348.80

38,906.68

0.00

100.0%

(857.01)

1,860.30

6,000.00

31.01%

1,485.29

82,936.89

59,400.00

139.62%

80200 · Consultant

0.00

0.00

2,000.00

0.0%

80600 · Legal Fees

192.00

3,563.00

9,000.00

39.59%

0.00

0.00

30,000.00

0.0%

192.00

3,563.00

41,000.00

8.69%

0.00

10.32

400.00

2.58%

3,488.48

102,715.17

110,000.00

93.38%

3,488.48

102,725.49

110,400.00

93.05%

78000 · COVID-19 Expenses
79000 · Fire Prevention Supplies
Total 70000 · Supplies
80000 · Service

80800 · Medical Exams
Total 80000 · Service
81000 · Communications & Delivery
81400 · Postage and Delivery
81800 · Communication & Technology
Total 81000 · Communications & Delivery
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WEST METRO FIRE-RESCUE DISTRICT

Profit Loss Budget vs. Actual
December 2020
December 2020

YTD

Budget

% of Budget
Used YTD

83000 · Utilities
83200 · Electric

1,708.65

19,091.85

26,000.00

73.43%

212.05

4,372.84

6,000.00

72.88%

1,638.54

12,965.97

20,000.00

64.83%

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.0%

3,559.24

36,430.66

52,000.00

70.06%

79.80

12,801.65

14,000.00

91.44%

0.00

7,632.72

10,000.00

76.33%

84400 · Equipment Repairs

1,029.00

22,385.34

16,000.00

139.91%

84600 · Vehicle Repairs

9,816.88

43,856.79

35,000.00

125.31%

10,925.68

86,676.50

75,000.00

115.57%

153.20

2,786.10

6,000.00

46.44%

153.20

2,786.10

6,000.00

46.44%

30.20

2,966.61

2,500.00

118.66%

1,675.33

1,675.33

3,000.00

55.84%

757.00

10,512.62

30,000.00

35.04%

0.00

3,375.00

5,000.00

67.5%

2,462.53

18,529.56

40,500.00

45.75%

87400 · Printing

0.00

0.00

300.00

0.0%

87500 · Insurance

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.0%

83400 · Water\Sewer
83600 · Gas
83800 · Refuse
Total 83000 · Utilities
84000 · Maintenance
84000 · Maintenance - Other
84200 · Building Repairs

Total 84000 · Maintenance
85000 · Rent
85400 · Office Equipment Rental
Total 85000 · Rent
86000 · Dues, Subscriptions & Training
86200 · Dues and Subscriptions
86400 · Awards
86800 · Training
86900 · Licenses & Permits
Total 86000 · Dues, Subscriptions & Training
87000 · Miscellaneous

87700 · Financial Services

4,153.40

59,995.73

53,000.00

113.2%

87999 · Budget Reserve

0.00

0.00

20,000.00

0.0%

Total 87000 · Miscellaneous

4,153.40

59,995.73

73,300.00

81.85%

158,961.25

2,076,951.17

2,030,650.00

102.28%

Net Ordinary Income

15,049.78

176,513.05

0.00

100.0%

Net Income

15,049.78

176,513.05

0.00

100.0%

Total Expense
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E-3 Consent

MEMORANDUM
DATE:

February 10, 2021

TO:

West Metro Fire-Rescue District Board

FROM:

Sarah Larson, WMFRD Chief

RE:

West Metro Firefighter Pension Payment

History
At their December 11, 2019 meeting the Board of Directors approved an $8,572.73
annual pension contribution to each WMFRD POC firefighter. The total 2020 pension
contribution for the 55 POC firefighters is $454,354.75; this equates to 636 total months
of pension service credit. State aid contributed $263,162.15 to this total. The balance due
from the WMFRD special pension fund is $191,192.60.
In 2020 the cities contributed $180,000 to the special revenue pension fund and there
was a fund balance of $164,687.72 for a total of $344,687.72 available for this payment.
Recommendation
Approve the payment of $191,192.60 to the West Metro Fire-Rescue District Firefighters
Relief Association for the 2020 pension contribution.

Staff ID
2217
2226
2237
2241
2258
2265
2277
2280
2283
2290
2291
2295
2302
2313
2315
2319
2321
2322
2324
2325
2328
2331
2333
2338
2341
2342
2345
2349
2351
2352
2353
2354
2356
2357
2359
2360
2361
2362
2363
2365
2366
2367
2368
2369
2370
2371
2372
2373
2374
2375
2376
2377
2378
2379
2380

Last
O'Malley
Tate
Herlofsky
Eliason
Wallace
Halvorson
Schwartz
Gorder
Brooks
Anderson
Hurney
Harty
Moser
Black
Rowedder
Sederstrom
Preston
Braun
Swerdfiger
Hortenbach
Roby
Brunsell
Magers
Forcier
Leaf
Lonsbury
Wheeler
Biondo
Chowdhury
Enselein
Fosler
Grimes
Maki
Piazza
Valadez Jr.
Zacharias
Burton
Cummings
Erickson
Kilpatrick
Knapp
Marquardt
Morgan
Nichols
Osborne
Stauffer
Clark
Huber
Kubista
Master
Murphy
Nielsen
Payne
Soto
Wolfman

Grand Total
State aid
Balance Due
Budgeted
Fund Balance
Gap

First
Pat
Jonathan
Timothy
Thomas
James
Daniel
Vance
Dwight
Christopher
Erick
Jeffrey
Kevin
Todd
Charlie
Matt
Ron
Matt
Jason
Douglas
Jeffrey
Brian
Bethany
Michael
Edward
William
John
Jacob
Louis
Nazib
Eric
Richard
Eric
Philip
Tara
Raul
Michael
Shannon
Adam
Justin
Matthew
Jason
Dennis
Anthony
Andrew
Ian
Benjamin
Brandon
Jason
Lucas
Ryan
Jennifer
Krista
Dedric
Jesus
Elisha

Months of service
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
11
12
12
12
6
12
12
12
9
12
12
12
12
0
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
10
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12

Lost time
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
1
0
0
0
6
0
0
0
3
0
0
0
0
12
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
2
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Contribution
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$7,858.34
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$4,286.37
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$6,429.55
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$0.00
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$7,143.94
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73
$8,572.73

636

24

$454,354.75
$263,162.15
$191,192.60
$180,000.00
$164,687.72
($153,495.12)

Notes

Retired on December 1st.

Resigned on June 30th.

Did not make the minimum call requirements for Q4-2019 / 60 day suspension that occurred during Q1-2020,1-17-20 thru 3-16-20

Resigned on February 4th. Did not meet minimum requirements for calls in January.

On a FD medical leave due to an injury that occurred at the fire station in December 2019

Began LOA on October 19, 2020 when he moved to Austin TX for a full time fire job.

1/29/2021

West Metro Fire-Rescue District Firefighters Relief Association
INVOICE
4251 Xylon Ave N
New Hope, Mn 55428

Phone:
Fax:

763-230-7000
763-230-7029

TO:

West Metro Fire - Rescue District

INVOICE NUMBER 2021-25
INVOICE DATE January 29, 2021

SHIPPED TO:

Sales Tax Rate:
QUANTITY

0.00%
DESCRIPTION

UNIT PRICE

2020 West Metro Fire-Rescue District Pension Contribution

AMOUNT

$191,192.60

SUBTOTAL

191,192.60

TAX

0.00

FREIGHT
$191,192.60
DIRECT ALL INQUIRIES TO:

MAKE ALL CHECKS PAYABLE TO:
West Metro Fire-Rescue District Firefighters Relief Association
4251 Xylon Ave N
New Hope, MN 55428
THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS!

PAY THIS
AMOUNT

E-4 Consent

MEMORANDUM
DATE:

February 10, 2021

TO:

West Metro Fire-Rescue District Board

FROM:

Sarah Larson, WMFRD Chief

RE:

Renewal of Insurance Premiums for General Liability, Property Damage,
Employee Bond and Worker’s Compensation for January 1, 2021 through
January 1, 2022.

BACKGROUND:
In 2019 we changed our policy period for our insurance premiums for General Liability,
Property Damage, Employee Bond and Worker’s Compensation to follow our budget
year of January 1 to January 1. Prior to this our insurance policy period ran from June
30 to June 30. It was difficult to budget across two budget years.
Property/Liability Coverage:
The property/liability policy premium for 2021 is $11,865 which is an increase of $248
from 2020’s premium of $11,617. The overall premium increased by about 2%.
The per occurrence deductible is $10,000 and the annual aggregate deductible is
$30,000. The 2021 Special Revenue Insurance Fund includes a $30,000 contribution in
2021 for this premium and potential deductible.
Workers Compensation Coverage:
The workers compensation policy premium for 2021 is $133,778 which is an increase of
$36,652 from 2020’s premium of $97,126. The District’s Experience Modification went
from a 0.73 in 2020 to a 0.95 in 2021 causing the increased premium. The 2021 general
operating budget includes $110,000 for this expenditure. The shortfall will be paid from
fund balance.
RECOMMENDATION:
Staff is requesting that the Board approve the District securing insurance coverage from
the League of Minnesota Cities Insurance Trust (LMCIT) through Ross Nesbit Agencies.
ATTACHMENTS:
• Property/Liability/Bond Renewal Premium Summary
• Workers Compensation Plan Renewal

January 29, 2021
Ross Nesbit Agencies

Covered Party:

West Metro Fire Rescue District

Effective Date:

1/1/2021

RENEWAL PREMIUM SUMMARY
Common Coverages
Coverage
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Deductible

Property
Mobile Property
Municipal Liability
Automobile Liability
UM/UIM $200,000 all owned autos
Basic Economic Loss Benefits (PIP) all owned autos
Automobile Physical Damage
Crime
Petrofund
Defense Cost Reimbursement

Auto Experience Mod:

0.95

Municipal Liability Experience Mod:

0.900

$

Premium

10,000.
10,000.
10,000.
10,000.
10,000.
10,000.
10,000.
1,000.
NA.
NA.

Aggregate Factor
Modifier:

$510.
36.
3,242.
1,509.
Included.
Included.
6,015.
Included.
Included.
Included.

1.010

The modifiers are calculated with a formula which compares the city’s actual loss history with the amount of losses that would be expected for a city of that size if the city were
a perfectly average LMCIT member. If the city’s losses and expenses are better than average the city receives a premium credit. If the city’s losses and expenses are worse
than average, the city receives a premium debit.

Optional Coverages
Coverage
● Bond
● Equipment Breakdown
● Excess Liability Limit:
● Liquor Liability Limit:
● Fireworks
● No Fault Sewer Back Up Limit:
● Airport Liability

Deductible
$ 500,000.

1,000.

$
$

NA.
NA.

$
TOTAL:

Premium
553.
Not Covered.
Not Covered.
Not Covered.
Not Covered.
Not Covered.
Not Covered.
$11,865.

DO NOT PAY UNTIL YOU RECEIVE INVOICES
TORT LIMIT:

PREMSUMXM(11/11)

$500,000/$1,500,000

Coverage

Optional Coverage Quotes
Deductible

Approximate Premium

Optional coverage(s) are not bound unless the covered party has requested that coverage be bound and LMCIT has
sent a written confirmation. Optional coverage quotes are valid for 30 days after the date of this letter.

Sincerely,

Underwriter

PREMSUMXM(11/11)

League of Minnesota Cities Insurance Trust
Group Self-Insured Workers' Compensation Plan
145 University Avenue West St. Paul, MN 55103-2044 Phone (651) 215-4173
NOTICE OF PREMIUM OPTIONS FOR STANDARD PREMIUMS_LM4514_01/20

Notice of Premium Options for Standard Premiums of $100,000 - $150,000
WEST METRO FIRE RESCUE DISTRICT
4251 XYLON AVENUE N
NEW HOPE, MN 55428-4881

Agreement No.:
Agreement Period:
From:
To:

WC 1003314_Q-5
01/01/2021
01/01/2022

Enclosed is a quotation for workers' compensation deposit premium. Note: Renewal Coverage will be bound as
per the expiring coverage arrangement, including coverage for elected and appointed officials, with the
premium indicated on the quote, unless the member or agent sends a written request not to bind renewal
coverage.

PAYROLL DESCRIPTION

CODE

RATE

ESTIMATED
PAYROLL

DEPOSIT
PREMIUM

SEE ATTACHED SCHEDULE FOR DETAILS

Manual Premium
Experience Modification
0.95
Standard Premium
Deductible Credit
0.00%
Premium Discount
Net Deposit Premium
Adjustment for Commission*
Total Net Deposit Premium

156,405
-7,820
148,585
0
-14,807
$133,778
0
$133,778

*Workers compensation rates assume a 2% standard commission. The commission adjustment accounts for the
commission difference, above or below 2%.

Agent:
00427

Ross Nesbit Agency
5900 Rowland Rd
Minnetonka, MN 55343-8924
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Notice of Premium Options for Standard Premiums of $100,000 - $150,000
(Con't)
OPTIONS
Please indicate below the premium option you wish to select. You may choose only one option and you
cannot change options during the agreement period.
1.

2.

*

*

Regular Premium Option

*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*

Commission
Adjustment

133,778

0

Total Net Deposit
Premium
133,778

Deductible Premium Option
Deductible options are available in return for a premium credit applied to your estimated standard
Premium of $ 148,585. The deductible will apply per occurrence to paid medical costs only.
There is no aggregate limit.

Deductible
per
Occurrence

3.

Net Deposit
Premium

$250
$500
$1,000
$2,500
$5,000
$10,000
$25,000
$50,000

Premium
Credit

Credit
Amount

Net Deposit
Premium

1.00%
1.70%
2.90%
5.00%
7.50%
10.50%
17.00%
22.50%

-1,486
-2,526
-4,309
-7,429
-11,144
-15,601
-25,259
-33,432

132,292
131,252
129,469
126,349
122,634
118,177
108,519
100,346

Total Net
Deposit
Premium

Commission
Adjustment
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

132,292
131,252
129,469
126,349
122,634
118,177
108,519
100,346

Retrospective Rates Premium Option
Retro-Rated
Minimum Factor

*
*
*

0.498 %
0.453 %
0.371 %

Est. Minimum
Premium

Retro-Rated
MaximumFactor

Est. Maximum
Premium

1.300 %
1.500 %
2.000 %

73,995
67,309
55,125

193,160
222,878
297,170

This quotation is for a deposit premium based on your estimate of payroll and selected options. Your final actual
premium will be computed after an audit of payroll subsequent to the close of your agreement year and will be
subject to revisions in rates, payrolls and experience modification. While you are a member of the LMCIT Workers'
Compensation Plan, you will be eligible to participate in divident distributions from the Trust based upon claims
experience and earnings of the Trust.
If you desire the coverage offered above, please return this signed document for the option you have selected.
This quotation should be signed by an authorized representative of the city requesting coverage.

Signature
Page 2 of 3

Title

Date
LM4514 (3/02)(Rev.01/20)

Notice of Premium Options for Standard Premiums of $100,000 - $150,000
(Con't)
CONTINUATION SCHEDULE FOR QUOTATION PAGE
REMUNERATION

RATE

CODE

DESCRIPTION

785,000
31,990
18,200

9.09
265.54
0.56

7706
7708
9411

FIREFIGHTERS (NOT VOLUNTEER)
FIREFIGHTERS (VOLUNTEER)
ELECTED OR APPOINTED OFFICIALS
Manual Premium

POP

Page 3 of 3

EST. PREM
71,357
84,946
102
156,405

LM4514 (3/02)(Rev.01/20)

E-5 Consent
PRINCIPALS
Thomas A. Karnowski, CPA
Paul A. Radosevich, CPA
William J. Lauer, CPA
James H. Eichten, CPA
Aaron J. Nielsen, CPA
Victoria L. Holinka, CPA/CMA
Jaclyn M. Huegel, CPA
Kalen T. Karnowski, CPA

C E R T I F I E D PUBLIC
A C C O U N TA N T S

January 26, 2021

To the Board of Directors and Management
of the West Metro Fire-Rescue District
4251 Xylon Avenue North
New Hope, MN 55428
Dear Boardmembers and Management:
We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide the District of West Metro
Fire-Rescue District (the District) for the year ended December 31, 2020. We will audit the financial
statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, the aggregate remaining fund information,
including the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial
statements of the District as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020. Accounting standards generally
accepted in the United States of America provide for certain required supplementary information (RSI),
such as management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A), to supplement the District’s basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. As part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to the District’s RSI in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. These limited
procedures will consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We will not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. The following
RSI is required by U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and will be subjected to certain limited
procedures, but will not be audited:
1) MD&A
2) GASB-required pension plan and other post-employment benefits information
We have also been engaged to report on supplementary information other than RSI that accompanies the
District’s financial statements. We will subject the following supplementary information to the auditing
procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, and we will
provide an opinion on it in relation to the financial statements as a whole, in a separate written report
accompanying our auditor’s report on the financial statements OR in a report combined with our auditor’s
report on the financial statements:
1) Individual fund financial statements and schedules

M a l l o y, M o n t a g u e , K a r n o w s k i , R a d o s e v i c h & C o . , P. A .
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We will perform the required State Legal Compliance Audit conducted in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the provisions of the Legal Compliance
Audit Guide, promulgated by the State Auditor pursuant to Minnesota Statutes § 6.65, and will include such
tests of the accounting records and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to conclude that,
for the items tested, the District has complied with the material terms and conditions of applicable legal
provisions.
We will also prepare a management report for the Board of Directors and management. This report will
communicate such things as our concerns regarding accounting procedures or policies brought to our
attention during our audit, along with recommendations for improvements. The report will also contain
certain financial comparisons and analysis, and a summary of legislative activity affecting Minnesota cities.
Our services will not include an audit in accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), which would only be required if the
District expended $750,000 or more in federal assistance funds during the year. If the District is required
to have a Single Audit of federal assistance funds, this engagement letter would need to be modified.
Audit Objectives
The objective of our audit is the expression of opinions as to whether your financial statements are fairly
presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and to
report on the fairness of the supplementary information referred to in the second paragraph when considered
in relation to the financial statements as a whole. Our audit will be conducted in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards for financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and
will include tests of the accounting records of the District and other procedures we consider necessary to
enable us to express such opinions. We will make reference to another auditor’s audit of required
components if necessary in our report on your financial statements. We will issue a written report upon
completion of our audit of the District’s financial statements. Our report will be addressed the Board of
Directors and management of the District. We cannot provide assurance that unmodified opinions will be
expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinions or add
emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraphs. If our opinions on the financial statements are other than
unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete
the audit or are unable to form or have not formed opinions, we may decline to express opinions or issue
reports, or may withdraw from this engagement.
We will also provide a report (that does not include an opinion) on internal control related to the financial
statements and compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements as required by
Government Auditing Standards. The report on internal control and on compliance and other matters will
include a paragraph that states (1) that the purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing of
internal control and compliance, and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District’s internal control on compliance, and (2) that the report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal
control and compliance. The paragraph will also state that the report is not suitable for any other purpose.
If during our audit we become aware that the District is subject to an audit requirement that is not
encompassed in the terms of this engagement, we will communicate to management and those charged with
governance that an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards may not satisfy the relevant legal,
regulatory, or contractual requirements.
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Audit Procedures – General
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be
examined and the areas to be tested. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We will plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether
from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws
or governmental regulations that are attributable to the government or to acts by management or employees
acting on behalf of the government. Because the determination of waste and abuse is subjective,
Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to preform specific procedures to detect waste or
abuse in financial audits nor do they expect auditors to provide reasonable assurance of detecting waste and
abuse.
Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control,
and because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is an unavoidable risk that
material misstatements may exist and not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and
performed in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or
governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However,
we will inform the appropriate level of management of any material errors, fraudulent financial reporting,
or misappropriation of assets that comes to our attention. We will also inform the appropriate level of
management of any violations of laws or governmental regulations that come to our attention, unless clearly
inconsequential. Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not
extend to later periods for which we are not engaged as auditors.
Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the
accounts, and may include tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of
receivables and certain other assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected individuals, funding
sources, creditors, and financial institutions. We will request written representations from your attorneys as
part of the engagement, and they may bill you for responding to this inquiry. At the conclusion of our audit,
we will require certain written representations from you about your responsibilities for the financial
statements; compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; and other responsibilities
required by generally accepted auditing standards.
Audit Procedures – Internal Control
Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the government and its environment, including internal
control, sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the
nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. Tests of controls may be performed to test the
effectiveness of certain controls that we consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that
are material to the financial statements and to preventing and detecting misstatements resulting from illegal
acts and other noncompliance matters that have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. Our
tests, if performed, will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal control
and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to
Government Auditing Standards.
An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses. Accordingly, we will express no such opinion. However, during the audit, we will
communicate to management and those charged with governance internal control related matters that are
required to be communicated under American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA)
professional standards and Government Auditing Standards.
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Audit Procedures – Compliance
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we will perform tests of the District’s compliance with the provisions of applicable laws,
regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants. However, the objective of our audit will not be to provide
an opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such an opinion in our report on compliance
issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards.
Other Services
We will also assist in preparing the financial statements and related notes of the District in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles based on information provided by you. These nonaudit
services do not constitute an audit under Government Auditing Standards and such services will not be
conducted in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. We will perform the services in accordance
with applicable professional standards. The other services are limited to the financial statement services
previously defined. We, in our sole professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to perform any
procedure or take any action that could be construed as assuming management responsibilities.
Management Responsibilities
Management is responsible for designing, implementing, establishing and maintaining effective internal
controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, including evaluating and monitoring ongoing activities to help
ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met; following laws and regulations; and ensuring that
management and financial information is reliable and properly reported. Management is also responsible
for implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements. You are also responsible for the selection and application of accounting principles, for
the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and all accompanying information in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for compliance with applicable laws
and regulations and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements.
Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information available to us and
for the accuracy and completeness of that information. You are also responsible for providing us with
(1) access to all information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements, including identification of all related parties and all related-party relationships
and transactions, (2) additional information that we may request for the purpose of the audit, and
(3) unrestricted access to persons within the government from whom we determine it necessary to obtain
audit evidence.
Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and for
confirming to us in the written representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements
aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial,
both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.
You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud,
and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving
(1) management, (2) employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the
fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing us
of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the government received in
communications from employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are
responsible for identifying and ensuring that the government complies with applicable laws, regulations,
contracts, agreements, and grants and for taking timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud and
noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts or grant agreements, or abuse that we report.
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You are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information, which we have been engaged to
report on, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. You agree to include our report
on the supplementary information in any document that contains and indicates that we have reported on the
supplementary information. You also agree to include the audited financial statements with any presentation
of the supplementary information that includes our report thereon OR make the audited financial statements
readily available to users of the supplementary information no later than the date the supplementary
information is issued with our report thereon. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the
written representation letter that (1) you are responsible for presentation of the supplementary information
in accordance with GAAP; (2) you believe the supplementary information, including its form and content,
is fairly presented in accordance with GAAP; (3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not
changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the reasons for such changes); and
(4) you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or
presentation of the supplementary information.
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit
findings and recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report copies
of previous financial audits, attestation engagements, performance audits or other studies related to the
objectives discussed in the Audit Objectives section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to
us corrective actions taken to address significant findings and recommendations resulting from those audits,
attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies. You are also responsible for providing
management’s views on our current findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as your planned
corrective actions, for the report, and for the timing and format for providing that information.
You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statements and related notes
and any other nonaudit services we provide. You will be required to acknowledge in the management
representation letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements and related notes and that
you have reviewed and approved the financial statements and related notes prior to their issuance and have
accepted responsibility for them. Further, you agree to oversee the nonaudit services by designating an
individual, preferably from senior management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the
adequacy and results of those services; and accept responsibility for them.
Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other
The assistance to be supplied by your personnel, including the preparation of schedules and analysis of
accounts, typing all cash or other confirmations we request, and locating any invoices selected by us for
testing, will be discussed and coordinated with you.
We will provide copies of our reports to the District; however, management is responsible for distribution
of the reports and the financial statements. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing privileged
and confidential information, copies of our reports are to be made available for public inspection.
The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Malloy, Montague, Karnowski, Radosevich
& Co., P.A. (MMKR) and constitutes confidential information. However, subject to applicable laws and
regulations, audit documentation and appropriate individuals will be made available upon request and in a
timely manner to a regulatory agency or its designee, a federal agency providing direct or indirect funding,
or the U.S. Government Accountability Office for purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit
findings, or to carryout oversight responsibilities. We will notify you of any such request. If requested,
access to such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of MMKR personnel.
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Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the aforementioned
parties. These parties may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information contained therein to
others, including other governmental agencies.
The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the report
release date or for any additional period requested by the regulatory agency. If we are aware that a federal
awarding agency or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the party(ies) contesting the audit
finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation.
We expect to begin our audit shortly after the end of your fiscal year and to issue our reports prior to
June 30, 2021. William J. Lauer, CPA, is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the
engagement and signing the reports or authorizing another individual to sign them.
Our fee for those services will be at our standard hourly rates plus out-of-pocket costs (such as report
reproduction, word processing, postage, travel, copies, telephone, etc.). We anticipate that our fees for the
services described in this letter will not exceed $10,725, plus reimbursable expenses. Our standard hourly
rates vary according to the degree of responsibility involved and the experience level of personnel assigned
to your audit. Our invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable
on presentation.
In accordance with our firm policies, work may be suspended if your account becomes 60 days or more
overdue and may not be resumed until your account is paid in full. If we elect to terminate our services for
nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have been completed upon written notification of
termination, even if we have not completed our report. You will be obligated to compensate us for all time
expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket costs through the date of termination.
These fees are based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected
circumstances will not be encountered during the audit. If we find that additional audit procedures are
required, or if additional services are requested by the District, those services will be billed at our standard
hourly rates. Additional audit procedures might be required for certain accounting issues or events, such as
new contractual agreements, transactions and legal requirements of new bond issues, new funds, major
capital projects, new tax increment districts, if there is an indication of misappropriation or misuse of public
funds, or if significant difficulties are encountered due to the lack of accounting records, incomplete records,
or turnover in the District’s staff. If significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and
arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs.
With regard to the electronic dissemination of audited financial statements, including financial statements
published electronically on your website, you understand that electronic sites are a means to distribute
information and, therefore, we are not required to read the information contained in these sites or to consider
the consistency of other information in the electronic site with the original document.
If you intend to publish or otherwise reproduce the financial statements, such as in a bond statement, and
make reference to our firm name, you agree to provide us with printers’ proofs or masters for our review
and approval before printing. You also agree to provide us with a copy of the final reproduced material for
our approval before it is distributed.
During the year, you might request additional services such as routine advice, assistance in implementing
audit recommendations, review of your projections or budgets, and other similar projects. Independence
standards allow us to perform these routine services; however, it is important that you understand that we
are not allowed to make management decisions, perform management functions, nor can we audit our own
work or provide nonaudit services that are significant to the subject matter of the audit.
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Please be aware that e-mail is not a secure method of transmitting data. It can be intercepted, read, and
possibly changed. Due to the large volume of e-mails sent daily, the likelihood of someone intercepting
your e-mail is relatively small, but it does exist. We will communicate with you via e-mail, if you are willing
to accept this risk.
To ensure that MMKR’s independence is not impaired under the AICPA Code of Professional Conduct,
you agree to inform the engagement partner before entering into any substantive employment discussions
with any of our personnel.
If a dispute occurs related in any way to our services, our firm and the District agree to discuss the dispute
and, if necessary, to promptly mediate in a good faith effort to resolve it. We will agree on a mediator, but
if we cannot, either of us may apply to a court having personal jurisdiction over the parties for appointment
of a mediator. We will share the mediator’s fees and expenses equally, but otherwise will bear our own
attorney fees and costs of the mediation. Participation in such mediation shall be a condition to either of us
initiating litigation. To allow time for the mediation, any applicable statute of limitations shall be tolled for
a period not to exceed 120 days from the date either of us first requests in writing to mediate the dispute.
The mediation shall be confidential in all respects, as allowed or required by law, except that our final
settlement positions at mediation shall be admissible in litigation solely to determine the identity of the
prevailing party for purposes of the awarding of attorney fees.
We both recognize the importance of performing our obligations under this agreement in a timely way and
fully cooperating with the other. In the event that either of us fails to timely perform or fully cooperate, the
other party may, in its sole discretion, elect to suspend performance or terminate the agreement regardless
of the prejudice to the other person. We agree we will give 10 days’ written notice of an intent to suspend
or terminate, specifying the grounds for our decision, and will give the other an opportunity to cure the
circumstances cited as grounds for that decision. In the event of suspension or termination, all fees and
costs are immediately due on billing.
We agree that it is important that disputes be discussed and resolved promptly. For that reason, we agree
that, notwithstanding any other statutes of limitations or court decisions concerning them, all claims either
of us may have will be barred unless brought within one year of the date the complaining party first incurs
any damage of any kind, whether discovered or not, related in any way to acts or omissions of the other
party, whether or not the complaining party seeks recovery for that first damage and whether or not we
have continued to maintain a business relationship after the first damage occurred. Notwithstanding
anything in this letter to the contrary, we agree that regardless of where the District is located, or where this
agreement is physically signed, this agreement shall have been deemed to have been entered into at our
office in Hennepin County, Minnesota, and Hennepin County shall be the exclusive venue and jurisdiction
for resolving disputes related to this agreement. This agreement shall be interpreted and governed under the
laws of Minnesota.
When requested, Government Auditing Standards require that we provide you with a copy of our most
recent external peer review report and any letter of comment, and any subsequent peer review reports and
letters of comment received during the period of the contract. Our most recent peer review report
accompanies this letter.
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We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to the District and believe this letter accurately summarizes
the significant terms of our engagement. If you agree with the terms of our engagement as described in this
letter, please have both parties sign the attached copy and e-mail it to mmkr@mmkr.com.
Sincerely,
MALLOY, MONTAGUE, KARNOWSKI, RADOSEVICH & CO., P.A.

William J. Lauer, CPA
Principal
WJL:lmb

Response:
This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of the District of West Metro Fire-Rescue District.

Board of Directors Representative

District Management Representative

By:

________________________________

By:

_________________________________

Title:

________________________________

Title:

_________________________________

Date:

________________________________

Date:

_________________________________

WEST METRO FIRE-RESCUE DISTRICT
RESOLUTION #2021 - 1
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE USE OF
MALL0Y, MONTAGUE, KARNOWSKI, RADOSEVICH & CO., P.A.
FOR THE 2020 FINANCIAL AUDIT
WHEREAS, it has been the practice of West Metro Fire-Rescue District (WMFRD) to conduct yearly
financial audits; and
WHEREAS, Malloy, Montague, Karnowski, Radosevich & Co., P.A. (MMKR) submitted a proposal to
provide a financial audit for the year 2020 for a fee in the amount of $10,725.00; and
WHEREAS, MMKR has audited WMFRD’s financial records from 2001 through 2019; and
WHEREAS, it is in the interests of WMFRD and its board of directors that MMKR be retained to
provide the financial audit for 2020;
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the West Metro Fire-Rescue District’s Board of Directors that
Malloy, Montague, Karnowski, Radosevich & Co., P.A. will provide the financial audit for the year
2020.
Adopted this 10th day of February, 2021.
WEST METRO FIRE - RESCUE DISTRICT
By: ___________________________, President
Gary Laurant

ATTEST: __________________________, Board Secretary
Anne Norris

F-1 Chief's Report
West Metro Fire-Rescue District
February 10, 2021
Chief’s Report
ADMINISTRATION/OPERATIONS REPORT
Sarah Larson, Fire Chief

1

Calls for Service Report
January 1 – January 31, 2021 Total Calls for Service
January 1 – December 31, 2020 Total Calls for Service
Crystal
781
New Hope
983
Mutual Aid 64
Not responded to per COVID-19 Protocols 178
January 1 – December 31, 2019 Total Calls for Service
Crystal
840
New Hope
1097
Mutual Aid 81

85
Estimated fire loss $0
1828 Estimated fire loss $1,313,433

2018 Estimated fire loss $2,276,913
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January 1 – December 31, 2018 Total Calls for Service
Crystal
820
New Hope
973
Mutual Aid 57

1856 Estimated fire loss $632,167

January 1 – November 30, 2019 Total Calls for Service
January 1 – December 31, 2018 Total Calls for Service
January 1 – December 31, 2017 Total Calls for Service
January 1 – December 31, 2016 Total Calls for Service
January 1 – December 31, 2015 Total Calls for Service
January 1 – December 31, 2014 Total Calls for Service
January 1 – December 31, 2013 Total Calls for Service
January 1 – December 31, 2012 Total Calls for Service
January 1 – December 31, 2011 Total Calls for Service

1820
1856
1922
1573
1514
1663
1448
1349
1638

Estimated fire loss $1,241,949
Estimated fire loss $632,167
Estimated fire loss $588,517
Estimated fire loss $1,637,094
Estimated fire loss $657,914
Estimated fire loss $1,861,162
Estimated fire loss $357,182
Estimated fire loss $169,900
Estimated fire loss $318,749

City Manager Meetings
I met with the City Managers in December and January. Items discussed included the major apparatus report,

preparing for the February 10, 2021 Fire Board meeting, my 2021 goals, and quarterly updates to the councils. Our next
meeting is scheduled for February 18, 2021.

Chief/Officer Meetings
We did not meet in December. At our January chief’s meeting we discussed the capital plan through 2026 and
major apparatus replacement. At our officer meeting we discussed the plan for returning to normal,
responding on specialty equipment, civil unrest operational guideline, replacement of utility 21, live burn
training in April, the first quarter training plan, and gave a construction update.
Full-time Staff
Full-time command staff continue to meet weekly. Along with day to day operations staff have been working
on collection and delivery of hundreds of gifts for the “be a Santa for a senior” program; executing capital
projects; coordinating the Honor Guard Clinic at Camp Ripley; preparation for the 2020 audit; performance
evaluations and preparation of 2021 goals; preparing for live burn training in April; virtual school fire safety
educational programing.
City Staff Meetings
I continue to attend senior staff meetings in both cities.
City Council Work Sessions and Meetings
I attended city council work sessions in Crystal on January 14, and February 2, 2021 and in New Hope on
January 19, 2021 to present the Board’s recommendation from the major apparatus report and give a
quarterly update.
Emergency Management Meetings
I continue to attend Hennepin County Emergency Management COVID-19 briefings twice per week and The
State Fire Marshal Update monthly.
Duty Crew
We will be staffing our duty crew of four firefighters overnight and on the weekends and two firefighters to
supplement the daytime response through the end of February. Beginning March 1, we will drop to two
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firefighters overnight and on the weekends and no firefighters during the week days to transition the
department back to normal response beginning April 1.
Vaccinations
42 of our firefighters voluntarily received the COVID-19 vaccination. This is 71% of the department.
2020 Budget
December Budget to Actual
Preliminary for the end of December, the 2020 budget is over budget by 2.28% at 102.28% or $46,301.17.
There are still some outstanding 2020 expenditures that have not been accounted for. At this time,
expenditures should be at 100.00%. The District also took in $222,814.26 of unbudgeted revenue putting us
8.5% under budget.
Lines over budget:
62000 - Part-Time Salaries is over by 32.59% or $143,396 due to the duty crew staffing in response to COVID19.
62800 - Social Security & Medicare is over by 23.46% or $10,439.70. This is due to the costs associated with
duty crew staffing in response to COVID-19.
72500 - Cleaning Supplies is over by 5.83% or $139.92.
77000 - Turn Out Gear is over by 5.7% or $684 due to the replacement of gloves and helmets.
78000 - COVID-19 Expenses is at $38,906.68. There are no budgeted funds associated with this line and we
have applied for a public assistance grant to cover these expenditures.
84400 - Equipment Repairs is over by 39.91% or $6,385.60 mainly due to the purchase of radio mics, cordless
lights for fire investigations, firefighting foam and hose testing.
84600 - Vehicle Repairs is over by 25.31% or $8,858.50 due to repairs made to Car 3, replacement of the turbo
on Engine 21, and extreme duty maintenance to Engine 11 after responding to the mutual aid fire at Northern
Metals in Becker. The expenditure for Engine 11 has been reimbursed by the City of Becker and should offset
this line item.
86200 - Dues and Subscriptions is over by 18.66% of $466.50.
87700 - Financial Services is over by 13.2% or $6,996 this includes the 2019 audit and an additional $450 per
month to run an extra POC payroll monthly.
Lines under budget:
63800 - Health Insurance is under by 13.93% or $12,335.02 we did not have the final costs associated with this
line at the time the budget was approved.
64500 - Workers Comp Insurance is under by 6.42% or $6,420. This budget line was based on historical costs.
65500 - Uniforms is under by 41.17% or $3,709.30 and will come in under budget due to not hiring firefighters
in 2020.
70500 - Office Supplies is under by 19.08% or $477.
74000 - Miscellaneous Operating is under by 16.29% or $1,629.
75500 - Tools and Equipment is under by 68.3% or $2,390.50. This should help to offset the equipment repair
line.
76000 - Motor Fuels is under by 32.86% or $7,557.80 due to duty crew staffing and a reduction in firefighter
training. December’s usage has not yet been paid.
79000 - Fire Prevention Supplies is under by 68.99% or $4,139.40 due to cancelation of most of our public
education programs and home safety surveys.
4

80200 - Consultant is under by 100% or $2,000 due to not recruiting firefighters in 2020.
80600 - Legal Fees is under by 60.41% or $5,426.90 due to not having a need for major legal consultations.
80800 - Medical Exams is under by 100% or $30,000 due to not recruiting firefighters in 2020. Some of this line
was expended at the end of the year for spirometry testing of all our firefighters. We have still not been billed
for this expense.
81400 - Postage and Delivery is under by 97.42% or $389.68.
81800 - Communications is under by 6.62% or $7,282.
83200 - Electric is under by 26.57% or $6,908.20. December’s usage has not yet been paid.
83400 - Water\Sewer is under by 27.12% or $1,627.20.
83600 – Natural Gas is under by 35.17% or $7,034.
84000 – Maintenance Other is under by 8.56% or $1,198.40.
85400 - Office Equipment Rental is under by 53.56% or $3,213.6 due to a renegotiated lease.
86400 - Awards is under by 44.46% or $1,778.40 this line is under budget due to canceling the annual
banquet. We did purchase the 2020 awards.
86800 - Training is under by 64.96% or $19,488 due to most firefighter training being put on hold including
outside schools.
86900 - Licenses & Permits is under by 32.5% or $1,625.
87400 - Printing is under by 100% or $300 due to not having any printing needs this year.
87999 - Budget Reserve has not been spent as was intended. This line is designated to replenish the fund
balance.
ADMINISTRATION
Assistant Chief of Administration, Joel Nelson
Scheduling
I continue to spend the bulk of my time scheduling duty crew shifts and rescheduling as we get firefighters
with COVID-19.
Quarantined Firefighters
Since our November surge of COVID-19 positive firefighters and quarantined due to exposure firefighters, the
impact has been minimal with only a handful of cases or quarantines.
Public Events
We are excited to be planning to restart many of our public events, we will start with all outside events as we
transition back to normal. We had firefighters volunteer for Salvation Army bell ringing at New Hope HyVee
on December 5th and Crystal Cub on December 12th. We have a Blood Drive planned for February 22nd at
both New Hope & Crystal from 2pm – 7pm. We will be doing our Food Drive on Saturday, March 20th from
10am – 3pm; this year we will not be doing the pot-luck breakfast nor the after dinner, in order to remain
COVID-19 safe. We have committed to both cities to be present at many of their outdoor events this summer.
Be a Santa to a Senior
We had another very successful event this past December, our training room was once again full of donations!
Birthday Brigade
To date, we have done 273 Birthday Brigade drive-by’s.
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Explorers
Remains canceled due to COVID-19.
Retirement / Resignation
Firefighter Ben Stauffer began a full-time job with the Austin Texas Fire Department, Ben went on LOA for 1
year while he goes through their academy, assuming all goes well for him in the academy, he will resign from
West Metro. Firefighter Dwight Gorder retired after giving 20 years of service, his resignation was effective
December 1, 2020.
Specialized Training – Honor Guard
We are actively preparing for the Honor Guard Clinic that we host at Camp Ripley in March of 2021. This will
be the 4th time we have held this clinic for firefighters and EMS personnel from around MN. We team up with
the MN Fallen Firefighters Memorial Association to plan and host the clinic. We contract with instructors from
the Milwaukee Firefighters Honor Guard for exceptional training. This event will be Friday night, March 26 –
Sunday March 28, there will be 6 instructors and ~60 students for throughout the state.
TRAINING
Assistant Chief of Training, Sean Watson
Department Training
Throughout the month of December, West Metro firefighters completed required bloodborne pathogens,
right-to-know, and OSHA training. Additionally, annual spirometry testing was completed.
As of Tuesday, February 2 we have restarted our regularly scheduled department trainings. Each session
allowed for 8 students and 2 instructors.
In April, we are planning to restart training requirements and increase the frequency of trainings offered.
A home in Crystal has been acquired to conduct live fire training in, we are planning on conducting this
training on April 10th.
West Suburban Fire Academy
The 15th year of the joint operation West Suburban Fire Academy began on January 25th with 16 students.
West Metro Fire will again serve as lead instructors for 13 fire academy classes. Students will complete
approximately 160 hours of training and gain Firefighter I, Firefighter II, and Hazardous Material Operations
state certifications. Graduation is scheduled for June 10th, 2021.
OPERATIONS/IT
Assistant Chief of Operations, Adam Wodtke
IT
FDM
I am working with FDM support to install updated components of FDM software. These updates are part of
our annual service contract.
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EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT
COVID-19 Vaccination
I worked with Hennepin County Public Health and Hennepin Emergency management to get all WMFRD staff
vaccinated that were interested in getting vaccinated. Roughly 70% of the fire department received their first
and second round of the Moderna COVID-19 Vaccine.
NSEMPG Meeting
Effective February 2021, I will serve as a Co-Chair of the North Suburban Emergency Management Planning
group. This group works as an extension of Hennepin County Emergency Management and will focus on the
Emergency Operations Plan, Continuity of Operations document and other emergency management initiatives
within the county.
FEMA Public Assistance (PA) Grant
We have submitted 4 FEMA Public Assistance (PA) grants related to COVID-19. Three of those grants are still
active in different stages of the grant approval process. One of those grants has been paid out and is
considered complete. These grant requests are for costs related to COVID-19 including personal protective
equipment, and staffing. PA grants fund 75% of the grant request. The other 25% match was funded by CARES
funds paid directly to the cities.
#1- March-April COVID-19 Expenses - Paid $58,247.70
#2- May- July COVID-19 Payroll Expenses- In Process ($141,799.42)
#3- May-December PPE and Cleaning Expenses- In Process ($26,162.59)
#3- August-October COVID-19 Payroll Expenses- In Process ($127,005.33)
We will continue to track expenses related to COVID-19 and submit grant projects as needed.
LOGISTICS
Assistant Chief of Logistics, Josh Kunde
COVID-19
There is light at the end of tunnel. However, the trickle-down effect of manufacturing playing catch up in
production is starting to delay other purchases than just medical supplies. Some of the other delayed supplies
are turn out gear, vehicle parts and building materials. We can still get them but, delivery times are extended.
Facilities
The duty crew assisted in replacing damaged ceiling tiles and door locks in the basement of station three. The
West Metro Fire-Rescue District Firefighters Relief Association will be moving their office from station two into
this unused office space.
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Vehicles and Equipment
Engine 21 blew its main 300amp chassis fuse during the snow storm in December and had to be towed back to
station three. The only obvious signs of why the fuse blew was corrosion and we replaced it. Roughly three
weeks later it blew the same fuse and I was able to determine it is related to an issue with one of the sirens.
One of the integrated compartment door latch, lighting and door ajar switches on Engine 32 failed and started
smoking while the truck was at a call. This was caused by moisture entering the switch from the back side and
shorting it out. The wiring and switch have been replaced.
I have also been working with Chief Larson on the major apparatus plan.
I posted retired Utility 11 on MN surplus online auction in January. The 2006 Ford F-250 sold for $20,600.00.
PREVENTION
Deputy Fire Marshal, Shelby Wolf
Inspections/Plan Reviews
In 2020 we conducted 675 inspections/plan reviews/meetings, along with 226 re-inspections.
Since the first of the year we have conducted 67 inspections/plan reviews/meetings, along with 28 reinspections.
Last year we covered a lot of ground with commercial building inspections including liquor and gas station
licensing inspections. We completed commercial building inspections in the areas of Douglas Drive, Bass Lake
Road, 56th Avenue North, Willow Bend, 57th Avenue North, Kentucky Avenue North, Winpark Drive, Industrial
Parkway, Science Center Drive, and East Research Center Road.
As of the first week of 2021 we started back up doing commercial building inspections. Our focus for the first
quarter will be the areas along the Highway 169 Service Road, Hillsboro Avenue North, 50th Avenue North, 51st
Avenue North, and Winnetka Avenue. We will continue our due diligence on keeping safe while doing
inspections.
Apartment Inspections are still on hold due to COVID-19 until April. We will be doing some preparation prior
to April to ensure the apartment inspection/training program will run smoothly as we bring the part time
inspectors back. We will meet with and/or re-train the firefighters on the program, and set up an inspection
schedule for them.
New construction projects are always in the works. There have been several remote meetings discussing
future projects in both cities.
Home Inspection Program
We will begin doing home safety surveys again in April. Our goal is to complete 30 in 2021. We will begin
advertising the program and ordering supplies over the next couple of months.
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Fire Prevention Education:
Due to COVID-19 all in-person fire prevention education has been put on hold. We have developed on-line fire
safety programs for K-2nd grades and in January we began to deliver these programs. Each program is age
appropriate, and a building block to the next grade level. These virtual programs are conducted in the fire
station training room. We use a computer, smartboard, cameras, head set, videos, gear and props. Even
being virtual we have been able to make it interactive. The kids and teachers seem to like it. We had 60-120
kids live at some points! It was pretty amazing! The teachers assisted in helping make the program
successful! The schools that we have done programs in so far are:
• Robbinsdale Spanish Immersion (6 programs for K-2 grades, 420 kids)
• Beacon Academy (9 programs for K-2 grades, 180 kids)
We are beginning to plan for 3rd grade fire safety educational programs for the spring. The big question is will
we be in person or doing virtual programs
We are currently working with schools on possibly expanding our fire safety programs to 4th and/or 5th grade.
We did a little research over the winter and put some program ideas on paper for each grade. This is all in the
early stages of development. Our hopes are if we get approval from the schools we can conduct the programs
possibly next year.
This winter we have been meeting with the City of New Hope Park and Rec, and Police planning for the
summer New Hope Safety Camp. So far it is a go, we have made some adjustments due to COVID-19, and
also have back up plans if things change.
Fire Investigations
11/18/2020 – 29XX Sumter Avenue North - Propane Tank Fire
11/19/2020 – 51XX Fairview Avenue North - Small House Fire
11/23/2020 – 27XX Brunswick Avenue North – Small Garage Fire
12/22/2020 – 43XX Oregon Avenue North – Apartment Fire from Hover Board Charger
12/23/2020 – 56th Avenue North/Zealand Avenue North – Car Fire
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F-2 Chief's Report

4 th Quarter Report

Preliminary
West Metro Fire-Rescue District
New Hope, Minnesota

As of December 31, 2020

January 27, 2021

ACCOUNTANT’S COMPILATION REPORT

Board of Directors
West Metro Fire-Rescue District
New Hope and Crystal, Minnesota
We have compiled the accompanying statement of revenues and expenditures for the General Fund and statements of
revenues and expenses for the Special Revenue, Capital, Pension, Special Revenue Insurance, and Compensated
Absences funds of the West Metro Fire-Rescue District (the District) as of December 31, 2020, for the quarter then ended.
We have not audited or reviewed the accompanying financial statements and, accordingly, do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance about whether the financial statement is in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Preliminary
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and for designing, implementing, and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements.

Our responsibility is to conduct the compilation in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review
Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The objective of a compilation is to assist
management in presenting financial information in the form of financial statements without undertaking to obtain or
provide any assurance that there are no material modifications that should be made to the financial statements.

Management has elected to omit substantially all of the disclosures and the statement of cash flows required by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. If the omitted disclosures and the statement of
cash flows were included in the financial statements, they might influence the user’s conclusions about the District’s
financial position, results of operations, and cash flows. Accordingly, the financial statements are not designed for those
who are not informed about such matters.
Sincerely,
AEM FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS, LLC
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January 27, 2021

Board of Directors
West Metro Fire-Rescue District
New Hope and Crystal, Minnesota
Dear Mr. President and Directors:
We have reconciled all bank accounts through December 31, 2020 and reviewed activity in all funds. The following is a
summary of our observations. All information presented is unaudited.
Cash and Investments
The District’s cash and investment balances are as follows:

Preliminary
12/31/2020

Increase/
(Decrease)

12/31/2019

Checking
Investments (at Market Value)

$

919,740
453,375

$

1,250,936
448,073

$

(331,196)
5,302

Total Cash and Investments

$

1,373,115

$

1,699,009

$

(325,894)
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Current short-term rates being offered by financial institutions are very low as evidenced by the table of U.S. Treasury
rates below. The U.S. Treasury rates provide a benchmark perspective for rate of return.

Date
9/30/2017
12/31/2017
3/31/2018
6/30/2018
9/28/2018
12/31/2018
3/29/2019
6/28/2019
9/30/2019
12/31/2019
3/31/2020
6/30/2020
9/30/2020
12/31/2020

1 mo
0.96
1.28
1.63
1.77
2.12
2.44
2.43
2.18
1.91
1.48
0.05
0.13
0.08
0.08

3 mo
1.06
1.39
1.73
1.93
2.19
2.45
2.40
2.12
1.88
1.55
0.11
0.16
0.10
0.09

6 mo
1.20
1.53
1.93
2.11
2.36
2.56
2.44
2.09
1.83
1.60
0.15
0.18
0.11
0.09

Treasury Yields
1 yr
2 yr
1.31
1.47
1.76
1.89
2.09
2.27
2.33
2.52
2.59
2.81
2.63
2.48
2.40
2.27
1.92
1.75
1.75
1.63
1.59
1.58
0.17
0.23
0.16
0.16
0.12
0.13
0.10
0.13

3 yr
1.62
1.98
2.39
2.63
2.88
2.46
2.21
1.71
1.56
1.62
0.29
0.18
0.16
0.17

5 yr
1.92
2.20
2.56
2.73
2.94
2.51
2.23
1.76
1.55
1.69
0.37
0.29
0.28
0.36

7 yr
2.16
2.33
2.68
2.81
3.01
2.59
2.31
1.87
1.62
1.83
0.55
0.49
0.47
0.65

10 yr
2.33
2.40
2.74
2.85
3.05
2.69
2.41
2.00
1.68
1.92
0.70
0.66
0.69
0.93

Cash Balance Graphs
A more detailed analysis of funds is included as Attachment A.

Preliminary
General Fund Summary

A detailed view of department totals compared with budget is included as Attachment B.
Special Revenue Fund Summary

A detailed summary of the special revenue fund is included as Attachment C.
Capital Replacement Fund Summary

A detailed summary of the capital replacement fund is included as Attachment D.
Pension Fund Summary

A detailed summary of the pension fund is included as Attachment E.
Special Revenue Insurance Fund Summary
A detailed summary of the special revenue insurance fund is included as Attachment F.
Compensated Absences Fund Summary
A detailed summary of the compensated absences fund is included as Attachment G.
* * * * *
This information is unaudited and is intended solely for the information and use of management and Board of Directors
and is not intended and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.
If you have any questions or wish to discuss any of the items contained in this letter or the attachments, please feel free to
contact us at your convenience. We wish to thank you for the continued opportunity to be of service and for the courtesy
and cooperation extended to us by your staff.
Sincerely,
AEM FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS, LLC
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ATTACHMENT A

Cash Balance by Fund Compared to Prior Year
$1,200,000
$1,000,000
$800,000
$600,000
$400,000
$200,000
$General Fund Special Revenue
Fund

Capital
Replacement
Fund

Pension Fund Special Revenue Compensated
Insurance Fund Absencess Fund

12/31/2019

12/31/2020

Preliminary
Special Revenue Fund Revenue Comparison 2017 - 2020

$60,000
$50,000
$40,000
$30,000
$20,000
$10,000

$-

2017

2018

2019

5
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ATTACHMENT A

Capital Replacement Fund Revenue Comparison 2017 - 2020
$250,000

$200,000

$150,000

$100,000

$50,000

$-

Preliminary
2017

2018
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2020

Pension Fund Revenue Comparison 2017 - 2020
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ATTACHMENT A

Compensated Absences Fund Revenue Comparison 2020
$12,000
$10,000
$8,000
$6,000
$4,000
$2,000
$-

Preliminary
2020

Special Revenue Insurance Fund Comparison 2020

$50,000
$45,000
$40,000
$35,000
$30,000
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$5,000
$-

2020
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West Metro Fire Rescue District

ATTACHMENT B

Balance Sheet
General Fund (Unaudited)
For the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2020
Assets
Cash
Asset
Asset
Asset
Total Assets

Account
Mutl
11700
12800
19000

Description

Actual

Cash in Checking
Due from Other Governments
Prepaid Expenses
Accrued Interest

$

$

Liabilities
Liability
31000
Total Liabilities

Payroll liabilities and Accounts Payable

$

340,004.00
1,618.18
341,622.18

96,029.60
96,029.60

Fund Balance
Fund Balance

41000

Unrestricted
Net Operations

163,847.31
81,745.27
245,592.58

Total Fund Balance
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

$

341,622.18

Preliminary
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ATTACHMENT B

West Metro Fire Rescue District
Statement of Revenue and Expenditures - Budget to Actual
General Fund (Unaudited)
For the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2020

Revenues

Account

Revenue
50100
Revenue
50110
Revenue
50115
Revenue
51000
Revenue
93000
Total Revenues

Description
Operating Revenue
Intergovernmental Grants
Refunds & Reimbursements
Miscellaneous Income
Interest-Money Market

% of Budget
Used YTD

Actual

Budget

$ 2,030,649.96
5,292.00
217,416.32
105.94
1,261.82
2,254,726.04

$ 2,030,650.00
2,030,650.00

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
111.04%

762,958.94
629,686.46
135,045.06
58,882.29
76,217.51
210.00
4,500.00
93,580.00
5,703.48
2,378.51
2,539.86
8,721.86
1,109.62
15,659.75
12,683.42
40,136.62
1,960.30
3,563.00
10.32
106,078.22
20,744.91
4,884.37
15,623.83
12,801.65
7,800.85
22,385.34
44,710.70
2,786.10
2,966.61
1,675.33
10,864.61
3,375.00
60,736.25
2,172,980.77

749,000.00
440,000.00
132,600.00
44,500.00
88,550.00
4,000.00
400.00
5,000.00
100,000.00
9,000.00
2,500.00
2,400.00
10,000.00
3,500.00
23,000.00
12,000.00
0.00
6,000.00
2,000.00
9,000.00
30,000.00
400.00
110,000.00
26,000.00
6,000.00
20,000.00
14,000.00
10,000.00
16,000.00
35,000.00
6,000.00
2,500.00
3,000.00
30,000.00
5,000.00
300.00
53,000.00
20,000.00
2,030,650.00

101.86%
143.11%
101.84%
132.32%
86.07%
0.00%
52.50%
90.00%
93.58%
63.37%
95.14%
105.83%
87.22%
31.70%
68.09%
105.70%
100.00%
32.67%
0.00%
39.59%
0.00%
2.58%
96.44%
79.79%
81.41%
78.12%
0.00%
91.44%
78.01%
139.91%
127.75%
46.44%
118.66%
55.84%
36.22%
67.50%
0.00%
0.00%
114.60%
0.00%
107.01%

Expenditures
Expense
61500
Expense
62000
Expense
62200
Expense
62800
Expense
63800
Expense
63900
Expense
64000
Expense
64200
Expense
64500
Expense
65500
Expense
70500
Expense
72500
Expense
74000
Expense
75500
Expense
76000
Expense
77000
Expense
78000
Expense
79000
Expense
80200
Expense
80600
Expense
80800
Expense
81400
Expense
81800
Expense
83200
Expense
83400
Expense
83600
Expense
83800
Expense
84000
Expense
84200
Expense
84400
Expense
84600
Expense
85400
Expense
86200
Expense
86400
Expense
86800
Expense
86900
Expense
87400
Expense
87500
Expense
87700
Expense
87999
Total Expenditures

Regular Salaries
Part-time Volunteers
PERA Coordinator
Social Security & Medicare
Health Insurance
Long Term Disability
Life Insurance
Health Savings Account
Workers Comp Insurance
Uniforms
Office Supplies
Cleaning
Miscellaneous Operating
Tools & Equipment
Motor Fuels
Turn Out Gear
COVID-19 Expenses
Fire Prevention Supplies
Consultant
Legal Fees
Medical Exams
Postage and Delivery
Communication & Technology
Electric
Water\Sewer
Gas
Refuse
Maintenance
Building Repairs
Equipment Repairs
Vehicle Repairs
Office Equipment Rental
Dues and Subscriptions
Awards
Training
Licenses and Permits
Printing
Insurance
Financial Services
Budget Reserve

Preliminary
Net Operations

$
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81,745.27

$

-

West Metro Fire Rescue District

ATTACHMENT C

Balance Sheet
Special Revenue Fund (Unaudited)
For the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2020
Assets

Account

Cash

10501

Description
Savings - Special Revenue Fund

Total Assets

Actual
$

63,492.30

$

63,492.30

$

3,215.05
3,215.05

Liabilities
Liability
31401
Total Liabilities

Accounts Payable-Special Revenue

Fund Balance
Fund Balance

41500

Special Fund
Net Operations

36,299.51
23,977.74
60,277.25

Total Fund Balance
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

$

63,492.30

Preliminary
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ATTACHMENT C

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures - Budget to Actual
Special Revenue Fund (Unaudited)
For the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2020
Revenues

Account

Revenue
50800
Revenue
93100
Total Revenues

Description
Fire Department Donations
Interest Income Special Fund

Actual
$

30,000.00
119.53
30,119.53

Budget
$

-

Expenditures
Expense
96001
Expense
96002
Expense
96003
Expense
96004
Expense
96005
Expense
96006
Expense
96007
Expense
96010
Total Expenditures

Honor Guard
WMFRD Explorer Program
Fire Dept Instructors Conference
Home Safety Survey Program
Restrictions-Equipment
Restrictions-Retirement
WMFRD Health & Wellness Program
Restrictions-Other

Net Operations

21.05
672.00
60.00
4,677.74
2,100.00
(1,389.00)
6,141.79
$

23,977.74

$

-

Preliminary
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West Metro Fire Rescue District

ATTACHMENT D

Balance Sheet
Capital Fund (Unaudited)
For the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2020
Assets

Account

Cash

11000

Description
Savings-Capital Replacement

Total Assets

Actual
$

584,113.35

$

584,113.35

$

210.11
210.11

Liabilities
Liability
Total Liabilities

31402

Accounts Payable - Capital Equip

44000

Capital Fund-Reserved
Net Operations

Fund Balance
Fund Balance

984,831.62
(400,928.38)
583,903.24

Total Fund Balance
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

$

584,113.35

Preliminary
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West Metro Fire Rescue District

ATTACHMENT D

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures - Budget to Actual
Capital Fund (Unaudited)
For the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2020
Revenues
Revenue
Revenue
Revenue
Revenue
Total Revenues

Account

Description

50200
50402
54002
93200

Aerial Lease
Contributions from Member Cities-Capital
Proceeds-Sale of Cap Assets-Cap
Interest Income Capital Account

88001
88002
88003
88004
88005
88006
88007
88008
88011
88012
88013

Admin Technology equipment
Building Equipment
Respiratory Protection Equipmen
Personal Protection Equipment
Powered Tools/Equipment
Communication Equipment
Technical Rescue Equipment
Medical Equipment
Prevention
Aerial Lease
Vehicles Staff & Utility

Actual
$

Budget

103,600.00
210,000.00
15,697.50
1,075.74
330,373.24

$ 103,600.00
210,000.00
313,600.00

10,778.34
55,230.29
468,829.98
38,063.48
4,970.00
2,180.00
103,561.36
47,688.17
731,301.62

20,000.00
475,000.00
40,000.00
2,500.00
103,600.00
55,000.00
696,100.00

Expenditures
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Expense
Total Expenditures

Preliminary
Net Operations

$ (400,928.38)

Budgeted Respiratory Protection Equipment include amounts carried over from prior years.
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$ (382,500.00)

West Metro Fire Rescue District

ATTACHMENT E

Balance Sheet
Pension Fund (Unaudited)
For the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2020
Assets

Account

Cash

10600

Description
Savings-Pension Fund

Actual
$ 344,687.72

Total Assets

$ 344,687.72

Liabilities
Liability
Total Liabilities

31403

Accounts Payable - Pension

46000

Pension Fund Reserved
Net Operations

$

-

Fund Balance
Fund Balance
Total Fund Balance
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

164,687.72
180,000.00
344,687.72
$ 344,687.72

Preliminary
West Metro Fire Rescue District

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures - Budget to Actual
Pension Fund (Unaudited)
For the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2020

Revenues

Revenue
Total Revenues

Account

51500

Description

City Pension Contribution

Actual

Budget

$ 180,000.00
180,000.00

$ 180,000.00
180,000.00

Expenditures
Expense
63000
Total Expenditures

Fire Pension

-

Net Operations

$ 180,000.00
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180,000.00
180,000.00
$

-

West Metro Fire Rescue District

ATTACHMENT F

Balance Sheet
Special Revenue Insurance Fund (Unaudited)
For the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2020
Assets

Account

Cash

10502

Description
Savings-Insurance Fund

Total Assets

Actual
$

30,818.11

$

30,818.11

$

30,818.11
30,818.11

$

30,818.11

Fund Balance
Fund Balance

41200

Insurance Fund Reserved
Net Operations

Total Fund Balance
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

Preliminary
West Metro Fire Rescue District

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures - Budget to Actual
Special Revenue Insurance Fund (Unaudited)
For the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2020

Revenues

Revenue
Total Revenues

Account

50900

Description

Special Revenue Insurance Fund

Actual

$

44,033.00
44,033.00

Budget

$

40,000.00
40,000.00

Expenditures

Expense
96008
Total Expenditures

Insurance Fund

13,214.89
13,214.89

Net Operations

$

15

30,818.11

$

40,000.00

West Metro Fire Rescue District

ATTACHMENT G

Balance Sheet
Compensated Absences Fund (Unaudited)
For the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2020
Assets

Account

Cash

10503

Description
Savings-Compensated Absences Fund

Total Assets

Actual
$

10,000.00

$

10,000.00

$

10,000.00
10,000.00

$

10,000.00

Fund Balance
Fund Balance

41300

Compensated Absences Reserved
Net Operations

Total Fund Balance
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

Preliminary
West Metro Fire Rescue District

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures - Budget to Actual
Compensated Absences Fund (Unaudited)
For the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2020

Revenues

Revenue
Total Revenues

Account

50950

Description

Compensated Absences Fund

Net Operations
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Actual

Budget

$

10,000.00
10,000.00

$

10,000.00
10,000.00

$

10,000.00

$

10,000.00

G-1 Old Business

MEMORANDUM
DATE:

December 9, 2020

TO:

West Metro Fire-Rescue Fire District Board of Directors

FROM:

Sarah Larson, Fire Chief

RE:

Major Apparatus Report

BACKGROUND:
The West Metro Fire-Rescue District (District) Board of Directors directed staff to
evaluate and recommend replacement options for our fleet of four front-line engines.
Staff used the American Public Works Association (APWA) vehicle replacement
guidelines and point system to score each engine and assign a value to their current
condition and type of duty. Potential critical maintenance and repair needs were
evaluated and a framework for costs was created. Refurbishment as well as maintaining
standardization of the apparatus was considered and replacement options were
developed.
TIMELINE
It is staff’s recommendation that after the presentation of the report at their October 14,
2020 meeting the District Board of Directors accepts the report, communicates to staff
what further information and questions they would like to have researched.
At the December 9, 2020 Board Meeting staff presents the additional requested
information to the District Board of Directors and they make a preliminary
recommendation.
January - February 2021 staff reviews the report and replacement options with the City
Councils.
At the February 10, 2021 Board meeting the District Board of Directors approves a
replacement plan for the engines.

MEMORANDUM

Date:

January 22, 2021

To:

West Metro Fire-Rescue District Board of Directors

From:

Kirk McDonald, New Hope City Manager
Anne Norris, Crystal City Manager
Sarah Larson, WMFR Chief

Subject: Major Apparatus Replacement Report Feedback
The New Hope City Council reviewed and discussed the Major Apparatus
Replacement Report with Chief Larson and Assistant Fire Chief Kunde at their
January 19 work session. At the December meeting of the West Metro FireRescue District Board of Directors, the city managers were requested to present
the information to their respective City Councils and provide their feedback to the
Board at the February 10 board meeting.
Per the attached minutes from the work session, the New Hope City Council is
unanimously in agreement with the Fire Board that Option 2, replacing the
engines with leases commencing in 2022 and 2023, is the best alternative. This
option was selected because it provides the highest resale value for the current
engines, avoids escalating maintenance costs on the current engines and will
provide the lowest lease price for the new engines. They support leasing vs.
purchase because the technology in the engines will be more current. They also
support the decision by the Board that the funds received from the sale of the
engines will be used to “buy down” the lease payments for the cities, thereby
lessoning the impact of the budget increase on the city’s general operating
budget.
Attachment:
Excerpt of Jan. 19, 2021 New Hope City Council Work Session Minutes
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Memorandum

DATE:

February 3, 2021

TO:

Sarah Larson, WMFRD Chief

FROM:

Anne Norris, City Manager

SUBJECT:

Council Discussion – WMFRD Board Engine Replacement
Recommendation
____________________________________________________________________
At its December meeting the WMFRD Board discussed options for replacing the 4
engines and recommended that the 4 engines be replaced over two years, 2022 – 2023
and that the engines be leased. The Board also asked both city managers to discuss
the recommendation with both city councils before the Board considers formal action.
The Crystal Council discussed this at its January 14 and February 2 work sessions.
There was a lot of discussion about the advantages and disadvantages of leasing, the
timing of replacement and likely terms of the lease.
After discussion, the Crystal Council supports the Board’s recommendation for
replacement of the engines as discussed at its December meeting.

Major Apparatus Replacement Report
December 2020

The West Metro Fire-Rescue District (District) Board of Directors directed staff to evaluate and recommend
replacement options for our fleet of four front-line engines. Our goal is to analyze the costs associated with
each apparatus and identify when, on average, the apparatus is reasonably depreciated but not yet incurring
significant maintenance costs.
History
The District’s current front-line engines were manufactured in 2011 and put into service in 2012.
In 2014, both cities reaffirmed that they would fund their respective portions for the costs of replacing major
equipment rather than have the District save for these purchases. The following equipment is considered
major apparatus:
APPARATUS

YEAR

MAKE/MODEL

USE

REPLACEMENT YEAR REPLACEMENT COST

Engine 11
Engine 21
Engine 31
Engine 32
Squad 1
Tower 1 (Lease)

2011
2011
2011
2011
2012
2017

E - ONE/Quest
E - ONE/Quest
E - ONE/Quest
E - ONE/Quest
E - ONE/Quest
Pierce/Arrow XT

Pumper
Pumper
Pumper
Pumper
Heavy Rescue
Platform

2021-2032
2021-2032
2021-2032
2021-2032
2021-2032
2027

700,000-900,000
700,000-900,000
700,000-900,000
700,000-900,000
700,000-900,000
1,400,000

In 2016 the District entered into a lease with PNC Bank for Tower 1.
Current WMFRD Engine Background
The fire engine is the work horse of any fire department as it is the first truck to a fire scene that can execute
extinguishment. To accomplish this mission, each fire engine carries over 1000 feet of fire hose, ground
ladders, hand tools, SCBA, a fire pump, at least 500 gallons of water, and most importantly, firefighters.
The decision to replace a vehicle is often based on one or two criteria, most commonly mileage and age. This
is because the data is easily obtainable and offers a clear decision. While this data is useful and ultimately
should have a role in the final disposition of the vehicle, it should not be used in isolation of the many other
factors that affect vehicle life. A broader assessment yields a more informed decision.
American Public Works Association Vehicle Replacement Guidelines
The American Public Works Association (APWA) has developed a point system for vehicle replacement. This
system has been adopted widely, including the City of Crystal public works and community development, for
determining replacement schedules.
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Factor
Age

Points
One point for every year of chronological age, based on in-service date.

Miles/Hours

One point for every 10,000 miles or 1,000 engine hours of use.

Type of Service

One, three, or five points are assigned based on the type of service the
unit is exposed to. For instance, fire pumpers would be given a five
because it is classified as severe duty service. In contrast, an
administrative sedan would be given a one.

Reliability

Points are assigned as one, three, or five, depending on the frequency
that a vehicle is in the shop for repair. A five would be assigned to a
vehicle in the shop two or more times per month on average, while a one
would be assigned to a vehicle in the shop an average of once every three
months or less.

Maintenance/Repair

One to five points are assigned based on total life maintenance and
repair costs (not including repair of accident damage). A five is assigned
to a vehicle with life maintenance and repair costs equal to or greater
than the vehicle's original purchase price, while a one is given to a vehicle
with life maintenance and repair costs equal to 20 percent or less than its
original purchase cost.

Condition

This category takes into consideration body condition, rust, interior
condition, accident history, anticipated repairs, and so on. A scale of one
to five points is used, with five being poor condition.

Point Ranges

Fewer than 18 Points
18 to 22 points
23 to 27 points
28 points and above

Condition I
Condition II
Condition III
Condition IV

Excellent
Good
Qualifies for replacement
Needs immediate consideration

Engine Scoring
Based on APWA’s assessment method, the score was determined for each of the District engines.
Engine 11
Age
Miles/Hours
Type of Service
Reliability
Maintenance/Repair
Condition

9
2011
2
Miles 22,239/Hours 1,656
5
Severe Duty
1
Once every 3 months or less
2
Portion of general operating budget and Assistant Chief of Logistics Salary
3
Corrosion on chassis and exterior paint
_______________
22

Good

2

Repairs Made
9/2015-12/2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
1/2020-8/2020
Engine 21
Age
Miles/Hours
Type of Service
Reliability
Maintenance/Repair
Condition

Repairs Made
9/2015-12/2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
1/2020-8/2020
Engine 31
Age
Miles/Hours
Type of Service
Reliability
Maintenance/Repair
Condition

Repairs Made
9/2015-12/2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
1/2020-8/2020
Engine 32
Age
Miles/Hours

4 times
4 times
3 times
3 times
4 times
2 times
9
2011
2.5
Miles 28,678/Hours 2,280
5
Severe Duty
2
More than once every 3 months
2
Portion of general operating budget and Assistant Chief of Logistics Salary
3
Corrosion on chassis and exterior paint
_______________
23.5

Qualifies for replacement

1 time
4 times
4 times
6 times
14 times
4 times
9
2011
2.5
Miles 27,339/Hours 2,078
5
Severe Duty
2
More than once every 3 months
2
Portion of general operating budget and Assistant Chief of Logistics Salary
3
Corrosion on chassis and exterior paint
_______________
23.5

Qualifies for replacement

2 times
2 times
5 times
10 times
7 times
3 times
9
3

2011
Miles 30,820/Hours 2,345
3

Type of Service
Reliability
Maintenance/Repair
Condition

5
2
2
3

Severe Duty
More than once every 3 months
Portion of general operating budget and Assistant Chief of Logistics Salary
Corrosion on chassis and exterior paint

_____________
Repairs Made
9/2015-12/2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
1/2020-8/2020

24

Qualifies for replacement

4 times
8 times
6 times
8 times
8 times
5 times

Critical Maintenance/Repair
Due to updates in the National Fire Protection Agency (NFPA), required testing of equipment, and just general
usage, as a piece of apparatus is in service for an extended period of time, the annual costs to keep it running
increase as compared to newer apparatus.
In the near term, as the District keeps vehicles over 11 years, repair of apparatus parts (such as tires, brake
pads, air lines) as well as fire pump components (pump valves, pump packings, pump transmissions) will be
needed. Longer term, as the apparatus continue in service the likelihood of issues with the electronics, vehicle
transmission, drive train, and coolant systems increase.
Due to the nature of the work, continued deterioration of the pumps, apparatus body damage, and general
structural wear will continue and become more significant. The District is already starting to experience
failures of some of the apparatus’ heating and cooling systems.
The information below provides a framework for potential maintenance costs associated with keeping an
apparatus beyond 11 years.
Maintenance
Tires
Brake Pads
Air Lines
Pump Valves
Pump Packings
Heating and Cooling System
Electronics
Pump Deterioration
Transmission
Drive Train
Coolant System
Corrosion
Structural Wear

Cost per Engine
$5,000-$6,000
$1,500-$2,500
$2,000-$5,000
$1,000 per truck per year
$1,000
$3,000-$5,000
$100-$10,000
$4,000-$6,000
$1,500-$3,500
$1,000-$5,000
$500
Unknown
Unknown

Total Cost
$20,000-$24,000
$6,000-$10,000
$8,000-$20,000
$4,000 annually
$4,000
$12,000-20,000
$400-$40,000
$16,000-$24,000
$6,000-$14,000
$4,000-$20,000
$2,000
Unknown
Unknown
4

When bringing all the potential needs into consideration, this would result in an annual increase to the
District’s vehicle repair general operating budget (line item 84600) of $20,000 to $30,000. To provide some
context, this could potentially double that line item which is currently $35,000.
Currently, the District completes most of its routine apparatus repairs and maintenance in-house. As these
repairs become more significant and complex (needing special equipment), this work would likely need to be
contracted out. Contracting out maintenance work will not only have a considerable impact on the costs to
complete the work (which was not taken into account in this cost analysis), but also means that the apparatus
will be out of service for a longer period of time while the more significant maintenance and repairs are
completed.
Refurbishment Considerations
NFPA cautions fire department administrators and fire chiefs to exercise caution when evaluating the cost of
refurbishing or updating existing fire apparatus as compared to just replacing the fire apparatus.
In the past, refurbishment often addressed items like underbody corrosion, internal plumbing, and electrical
issues. With the use of underbody coatings, stainless steel plumbing, and improved wiring harnesses that can
handle the electrical loads being put on the system, these issues are not the driving factor for maintenance
needs like they once were.
Refurbishing an apparatus does not guarantee that it will be free of mechanical issues, it also does not address
issues related to engine and chassis wear or outdated technology to make economic sense.
Manufacturer and Model Considerations
Currently, the District’s front-line engines are the same age, make, model, and configuration. This
standardization of apparatus creates efficiencies when firefighters are called to service as it allows any
firefighter to work from any truck without specialized knowledge of different apparatus. This results in faster
flow of water to a fire, better utilization of proper tools, and consistent pump operation.
From a vehicle operation standpoint, uniformity in apparatus allows the drivers to operate more safely and
efficiently getting to and from a scene as all of the engines have the same blind spots, mirrors, controls,
braking systems, turning radius, and occupant protection systems.
From a training and time standpoint, standardization also means that the same training program works for all
firefighters at all three fire stations. This minimizes staff and firefighter time, while maximizing flexibility, in
developing and executing training on individual engines and the differences in the pump controls, valves,
scene, and emergency lighting. This uniformity has proven to be extremely important in the era of COVID-19
where we are putting crews from multiple stations together and they are able to operate seamlessly; this is
something that would have been very difficult in the past with multiple engine types and configurations.
Benefit summary:
• Minimized training hours to bring all staff to the same operational level
• Maximized safety and efficiency of apparatus operation
• Maximized standardization of equipment and procedures
• Maximized efficiency in vehicle parts and supplies needed to be kept on hand (fluids, filters, valves,
etc.)
• Maximized predictive preventative maintenance
5

Challenges summary:
• With all the apparatus the same age, make, and model it is likely that they may have repair needs
simultaneously, especially as they get older
o This could mean multiple apparatus down at the same time
o Costs of preventative maintenance could be considerable during years when certain
maintenance items are due
• Issues “bugs” with one unit could be consistent in all apparatus
Replacement Options
Seven different options have been developed with regards to the potential replacement of the engines.
Research indicated a range of 3% - 7% per year increase to the purchase price of an engine. A straight 5%
multiplier, not compounded, was used as an annual escalator to estimate future costs. The options are:
• Replace four engines at 11 years lease or purchase
• Replace two engines at 11 years and two at 12 years lease or purchase
• Replace two engines at 13 years and two at 14 years lease or purchase
• Replace four engines at 15 years lease or purchase
• Replace two engines at 15 years and two at 16 years lease or purchase
• Replace four engines at 20 years lease or purchase
• Replace two engines at 20 years and two at 21 years lease or purchase
1. Replace four engines at 11 years lease or purchase in 2022
Cost per engine $675,000 - $725,000
Estimated lease cost per engine $70,000
Replacing these engines at 11 years would have the most significant impact on the vehicle maintenance
budget and service downtime. Most of the critical maintenance and repairs would not have to be
completed on the engines saving up to $210,000 for all four apparatus.
Paying for the apparatus upfront would give us the most substantial discount. Leasing pays the entire
purchase price when the contract is signed, so payment upfront happens automatically.
At 11 years, the approximate resale value for each engine would be between $125,000 and $175,000,
depending on the supply of used fire apparatus in the market the year we sell.
If all four of the apparatus are built from the same specification and engineering, the largest discount
would be given if all four trucks are ordered and built simultaneously.
2. Replace two engines at 11 years and two at 12 years lease or purchase in 2022 and 2023
Cost per engine in 2022 $675,000 - $725,000
Cost per engine in 2023 $709,000 - $761,000
Estimated lease cost per engine $70,000 - $73,500
Replacing these engines within this timeframe would have a significant impact on the vehicle maintenance
budget and service downtime. Most of the critical maintenance and repairs would not have to be
completed on the engines saving up to $210,000 for all four apparatus.
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Paying for the apparatus upfront would give us the most substantial discount. Leasing pays the entire
purchase price at the time the contract is signed, so payment upfront happens automatically.
At 11 and 12 years, the approximate resale value for each engine would be between $125,000 and
$175,000, depending on the supply of used fire apparatus in the market the year we sell.
If all four of the apparatus are built from the same specification and engineering and purchased within 12
months, there would still be a discount for sister trucks; however, these discounts may not be as much
and, market increases could raise the price of the second purchase.
3. Replace two engines at 13 years and two at 14 years lease or purchase in 2024 and 2025
Cost per engine in 2024 $743,000 - $798,000
Cost per engine in 2025 $780,000 - $837,000
Estimated lease cost per engine $77,000 - $81,000
Replacing these engines at 13 and 14 years would cause the need for some critical maintenance and
repairs to be completed, including tires, brakes and HVAC, costing $38,000 -$54,000 above the estimated
annual cost of $35,000. Failures may happen to more than one apparatus at a time, causing service
interruptions and additional costs to expedite their repair by supplementing outside vendors to assist our
Assistant Chief of Logistics.
Paying for the apparatus upfront would give us the most substantial discount. Leasing pays the entire
purchase price at the time the contract is signed, so payment upfront happens automatically.
At 13 and 14 years, the approximate resale value for each engine would be between $75,000 and
$125,000, depending on the supply of used fire apparatus in the market the year we sell.
If all four of the apparatus are built from the same specification and engineering and purchased within 12
months, there would still be a discount for sister trucks; however, these discounts may not be as much
and, market increases could raise the price of the second purchase.
4. Replace four engines at 15 years lease or purchase in 2026
Cost per engine $810,000 - $870,000
Estimated lease cost per engine $84,000
Replacing these engines at 15 years would cause the need for most critical maintenance and repairs to be
completed, costing up to $210,000 above the estimated annual cost of $35,000. Failures may happen to
more than one apparatus at a time, causing service interruptions and additional costs to expedite their
repair by supplementing outside vendors to assist our Assistant Chief of Logistics.
Paying for the apparatus upfront would give us the most substantial discount. Leasing pays the entire
purchase price when the contract is signed, so payment upfront happens automatically.
At 15 years, the approximate resale value for each apparatus would be between $25,000 and $75,000,
depending on the supply of used fire apparatus in the market the year we sell.
If all four of the apparatus are built from the same specification and engineering, the largest discount
would be given if all four trucks are ordered and built simultaneously.
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5. Replace two engines at 15 years and two at 16 years lease or purchase in 2026 and 2027
Cost per engine in 2026 $810,000 - $870,000
Cost per engine in 2027 $844,000 - $906,000
Estimated lease cost per engine $84,000 - $87,500
Replacing these engines at 15 and 16 years would cause the need for most critical maintenance and
repairs to be completed, costing up to $210,000 above the estimated annual cost of $35,000. Failures may
happen to more than one apparatus at a time, causing service interruptions and additional costs to
expedite their repair by supplementing outside vendors to assist our Assistant Chief of Logistics.
Paying for the apparatus upfront would give us the most substantial discount. Leasing pays the entire
purchase price at the time the contract is signed, so payment upfront happens automatically.
At 15 and 16 years, the approximate resale value for each engine would be between $25,000 and $75,000,
depending on the supply of used fire apparatus in the market the year we sell.
If all four of the apparatus are built from the same specification and engineering and purchased within 12
months, there would still be a discount for sister trucks; however, these discounts may not be as much
and, market increases could raise the price of the second purchase.
6. Replace four engines at 20 years lease or purchase in 2031
Cost per engine $979,000 - $1,051,000
Estimated lease cost per engine $101,500
Replacing these engines at 20 years would require all critical maintenance and repairs to be completed,
costing up to $210,000 above the estimated annual cost of $35,000. Failures may happen to more than
one apparatus at a time, causing service interruptions and additional costs to expedite their repair by
supplementing outside vendors to assist our Assistant Chief of Logistics.
Paying for the apparatus upfront would give us the most substantial discount. Leasing pays the entire
purchase price at the time the contract is signed, so payment upfront happens automatically.
At 20 years, the approximate resale value for each apparatus would be $25,000 or less, depending on the
supply of used fire apparatus in the market the year we sell.
If all four of the apparatus are built from the same specification and engineering, the largest discount
would be given if all four trucks are ordered and built simultaneously.
7. Replace two engines at 20 years and two at 21 years lease or purchase in 2031 and 2032
Cost per engine in 2031 $979,000 - $1,051,000
Cost per engine in 2032 $1,013,000 - $1,088,000
Estimated lease cost per engine $101,500 - $105,000
Replacing these engines at 20 and 21 years would require all critical maintenance and repairs to be
completed, costing up to $210,000 above the estimated annual cost of $35,000. Failures may happen to
more than one apparatus at a time, causing service interruptions and additional costs to expedite their
repair by supplementing outside vendors to assist our Assistant Chief of Logistics.
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Paying for the apparatus upfront would give us the most substantial discount. Leasing pays the entire
purchase price at the time the contract is signed, so payment upfront happens automatically.
At 20 and 21 years, the approximate resale value for each engine would be $25,000 or less, depending on
the supply of used fire apparatus in the market the year we sell.
If all four of the apparatus are built from the same specification and engineering and purchased within 12
months, there would still be a discount for sister trucks; however, these discounts may not be as much
and, market increases could raise the price of the second purchase.

Full size table included at the end of this report.
Recommendation
After extensive research on what other cities have done and the history with the District’s engines, no clearcut answer for how long an engine should be in service was determined. It is clear that maintaining
standardization of our apparatus is a benefit to the safety and efficiency of the department and would require
replacing all four apparatus within a 12-month window.
In order to mitigate the increased risk of financial burden and maintenance down time that occurs after 10
years of service for an engine it is the WMFRD Board of Director’s recommendation that option two is the
most responsible plan for replacement; they are recommending replacement of the engines at 11 and 12
years. This would garner the lowest cost per engine, avoid escalating maintenance costs and bring in the
greatest benefit from resale.
The WMFRD Board of Director’s is recommending leasing the apparatus because the lease payments become
a known and consistent operational budget expenditure, cease the cities’ contribution to a major apparatus
fund, allow the District to maintain standardization without the cities having to leverage funding, and the
interest rate is comparable to the rate of inflation.
At their December meeting the WMFRD Board of Directors approved an amendment to the District’s Capital
Fund Policy that reserves the proceeds from the future sale of major apparatus to purchase/lease new
apparatus or to pay down an existing lease. The funds from the sale of the existing apparatus will be used to
offset the cities’ contribution to the lease payment of the new apparatus.
Attachments:
Service Life Data from Twin Cities’ Departments Spreadsheet
Replacement Option Summary
Lease Vs Purchase of Engines Document
Estimated Offset to Cities’ Contribution from Sale of Engines Spreadsheet
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Service Life Data From Twin Cities Departments
Department

Total Service Life

Refurbishment Y/N

Lease/Bond/Cash

St. Anthony

30 Years

30 Years

Service Life - Front Line

Service Life - Back Up

Some at 20 years

Cash

Eden Prairie

In the past 20 Years/now 7-10 Years

7-10 Years

No

Traditional bond
Lease to own
Lease with a guaranteed buy back cost and turn the fleet every 7 years
I have found that large apparatus lose 50% of value at 10 years,
and after ten years, it drops dramatically.

Elk River

20 Years

Burnsville

12-16 Years

Robbinsdale

30 Years

Cottage Grove

25 Years

Golden Valley

20 Years

15 Years

Long Lake

25 Years

Brooklyn Park

12 Years

Columbia Heights

Ladder Yes
8-10 Years

4-5 Years

Cash
Cash
No

Cash

5 Years

No

Cash

15-20 Years

5-10 Years

No

Cash

5-6 Years

6-7 Years

?

Exploring different funding options
Fire was not originally in the long-term equipment replacement fund which has created a
funding challenge. We have since added the replacement program
into the funding allocations which has resulted
in a significant increase in annual chargebacks into our operating budget

30 Years

Minor Refurbishment at 15-20 Years

Cash

Brooklyn Center

20 Years

No

Cash

White Bear Lake

20 Years

No

Cash

Minnetonka

Duty Crew 5-7 Years
Unstaffed Station Engines 20 Years

Yes

Bloomington

15 Years

Shakopee

Cash

5 Years

No

Cash

20 Years

No

Cash

Hopkins

10 Years

?

Cash
Lease
Equipment Certificate

New Brighten

20 Years

No

Cash

Service Life Data From Twin Cities Departments
Department

Total Service Life

Service Life - Front Line

Edina

10 Years

South Metro

20 Years

10 Years

Eagan

15 Years

7-8 Yeas

Plymouth

Service Life - Back Up

Refurbishment Y/N

Lease/Bond/Cash

?

Cash
Bonds

10 Years

No

Cash

7-8 Years

?

?

Duty Crew 10 Years
Non Duty Crew 15 Years

No
No

Cash

Coon Rapids

13 Years

No

Cash

Maple Grove

20 Years

Refurbishment
did not address issues of engine
wear and chassis wear to
adequately make economic sense

Cash

Replacement Option Summary

Option 1
Option 2
Age of Engine at Replacement
11 Years
11/12 Years
Cost Per Engine 1st Purchase $675,000-$725,000 $675,000-$725,000
Cost Per Engine 2nd Purchase
$0
$704,000-$761,000
Maintenance Cost Savings
$210,000
$210,000
Estimated re-sale
$125,000-$175,000 $125,000-$175,000
Other benefits
Same Specifications
Sister trucks
Replacement Year
2022
2022/2023
Lease Cost per Engine
$70,000
$70,000/$73,500

Option 3
13/14 Years
$744,450-$799,850
$781,673-$839,000
$152,000-$172,000
$75,000-$125,000
Sister trucks
24/25
$77,000-$81,000

Option 4
Option 5
15 Years
15/16 Years
$810,000-$870,000 $810,000-$870,000
$0
$844,000-$906,000
$0
$0
$25,000-$75,000
$25,000-$75,000
Same Specifications
Sister trucks
2026
2026/2027
$84,000
$84,000/$87,500

Option 6
Option 7
20 Years
20/21 Years
$979,000-$1,051,000 $979,000-$1,051,000
$0
$1,013,000-$1,088,000
$0
$0
$10,000-$25,000
$10,000-$25,000
Same Specifications
Sister trucks
2031
2031/2032
$101,000
$101,500/$105,000

Leasing vs Purchase

Lease Apparatus
Pros
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Interest rate is low and is comparable to the rate of inflation
Lease takes full advantage of manufacturer discounts by paying the entire purchase
price at time of order
Lease payments become a known and consistent operational budget expenditure
Ceases the cities’ contribution to a major apparatus fund
There are no deposits, down payments, or closing expenses and payments are fixed for
the life of the contract
Allows the District to maintain standardization without the cities having to leverage
funding
The apparatus may be turned in early, terminating the lease, without penalty

Cons
•
•
•

The District does not own the apparatus unless the buy-out option is exercised at the
end of the contract
There is interest on the lease
Cities’ annual contribution will increase due to lease payment

Purchase Apparatus
Pros
•
•
•

The District owns the apparatus
No direct increase to the District budget
No financing interest

Cons
•
•

The cities must adequately save for replacement of major apparatus or accept alternate
funding options
The potential for underfunding and having to make apparatus purchases over multiple
years impedes the standardization of the fleet

Lease vs. Purchase Options
Fire Truck Asset Acquisition
As of November 25, 2020
Leasing Option 2022 First Delivery (2.8%)
Year
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034
2035
2036

Lease
payment
$

140,000
287,000
287,000
287,000
287,000
287,000
287,000
287,000
287,000
287,000
147,000
$ 2,870,000

Offset
$

$

70,000
140,000
90,000
60,000
40,000
20,000
20,000
20,000
20,000
20,000
500,000

Cities
Contribution
$
70,000
147,000
197,000
227,000
247,000
267,000
267,000
267,000
267,000
267,000
147,000
$ 2,370,000

Leasing Option 2024 First Delivery (2.8%)
Year
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034
2035
2036

Lease
payment
$

154,000
315,700
315,700
315,700
315,700
315,700
315,700
315,700
315,700
315,700
161,700
$ 3,157,000

Offset

$

$

70,000
110,000
60,000
30,000
10,000
10,000
10,000

300,000

Cities
Contribution
$
84,000
205,700
255,700
285,700
305,700
305,700
305,700
315,700
315,700
315,700
161,700
$ 2,857,000

Purchase with Bond at estimated 1.2% interest (no
bonding costs included in projection)
Year
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034
2035
2036

Payment
$ 307,585
307,585
307,585
307,585
307,585
307,585
307,585
307,585
307,585
307,585

Offset
$
140,000
100,000
80,000
80,000
50,000
50,000

$ 3,075,851

$

500,000

Cities
Contribution
$
167,585
207,585
227,585
227,585
257,585
257,585
307,585
307,585
307,585
307,585

$

2,575,851

West Metro Fire-Rescue District
Leasing Options
As of January 5, 2021
Leasing Option 2022 First Delivery (2.8%)
Original Projection
Lease
Cities
payment
Contribution
Offset
Year
2022
2023
$ 140,000 $
70,000 $
70,000
2024
287,000
140,000
147,000
2025
287,000
90,000
197,000
2026
287,000
60,000
227,000
2027
287,000
40,000
247,000
2028
287,000
20,000
267,000
2029
287,000
20,000
267,000
2030
287,000
20,000
267,000
2031
287,000
20,000
267,000
2032
287,000
20,000
267,000
2033
147,000
147,000
2034
2035
2036
$ 2,870,000 $ 500,000 $ 2,370,000

Leasing Option 2022 First Delivery (2.8%)
Option 1
Lease
Cities
payment
Contribution
Offset
Year
2022
2023
$ 140,000 $ 70,000 $
70,000
2024
287,000
160,000
127,000
2025
287,000
110,000
177,000
2026
287,000
90,000
197,000
2027
287,000
70,000
217,000
2028
287,000
20,000
267,000
2029
287,000
20,000
267,000
2030
287,000
20,000
267,000
2031
287,000
20,000
267,000
2032
287,000
20,000
267,000
147,000
2033
147,000
2034
2035
2036
$ 2,870,000 $ 600,000 $ 2,270,000

Leasing Option 2022 First Delivery (2.8%)
Option 2
Lease
Cities
payment
Contribution
Offset
Year
2022
2023
$ 140,000 $ 70,000 $
70,000
2024
287,000
170,000
117,000
2025
287,000
130,000
157,000
2026
287,000
100,000
187,000
2027
287,000
80,000
207,000
2028
287,000
60,000
227,000
30,000
257,000
2029
287,000
2030
287,000
20,000
267,000
2031
287,000
20,000
267,000
2032
287,000
20,000
267,000
2033
147,000
147,000
2034
2035
2036
$ 2,870,000 $ 700,000 $ 2,170,000

Major Apparatus
Replacement Report
December 2020

History
The District’s current front-line engines were manufactured in 2011
and put into service in 2012.
In 2014, both cities reaffirmed that each municipality would fund
their respective portions of the costs of replacement of major
equipment.
In 2016 the District entered into a lease with PNC Bank for Tower 1.

APWA Vehicle
Replacement Guidelines
Factors
Age
Miles/Hours
Type of Service
Reliability
Maintenance/Repair
Condition

APWA Point Ranges
Fewer than 18 Points Condition I

Excellent

18 to 22 points

Condition II

Good

23 to 27 points

Condition III

Qualifies for replacement

28 points and above

Condition IV

Needs immediate consideration

Engine Scoring
Engine 11

22 Points

Good

Engine 21

23.5 Points

Qualifies for replacement

Engine 31

23.5 Points

Qualifies for replacement

Engine 32

24 Points

Qualifies for replacement

Critical
Maintenance/Repair
$20,000 - $30,000 increase to general operating budget

Refurbishment
Refurbishing an apparatus does not guarantee that it will be free of
mechanical issues, it also does not address issues related to engine
and chassis wear or outdated technology to make economic sense.

Manufacturer and
Model
Benefit summary:
Minimized training hours to bring all staff to the same operational level
Maximized safety and efficiency apparatus operation
Maximized standardization of equipment and procedures
Maximized efficiency in vehicle parts and supplies needed to be kept on hand
(fluids, filters, valves, etc.)
Maximized predictive preventative maintenance.

Manufacturer and
Model
Challenges summary:
With all the apparatus the same age, make, and model it is likely that they may
have repair needs simultaneously, especially as they get older.
This could mean multiple apparatus down at the same time
Costs of preventative maintenance could be considerable during years when
certain maintenance items are due
Issues “bugs” with one unit could be consistent in all apparatus

Replacement Options
Replace four engines at 11 years lease or purchase
Replace two engines at 11 years and two at 12 years lease or purchase
Replace two engines at 13 years and two at 14 years lease or purchase
Replace four engines at 15 years lease or purchase
Replace two engines at 15 years and two at 16 years lease or purchase
Replace four engines at 20 years lease or purchase
Replace two engines at 20 years and two at 21 years lease or purchase

Replacement Options
Option 1

Option 2

Option 3

Option 4

Option 5

Option 6

Option 7

Age of Engine at Replacement

11 Years

11/12 Years

13/14 Years

15 Years

15/16 Years

20 Years

20/21 Years

Cost Per Engine 1st Purchase

$675,000-$725,000

$675,000-$725,000

$744,450-$799,850

$810,000-$870,000

$810,000-$870,000

$979,000-$1,051,000

$979,000-$1,051,000

Cost Per Engine 2nd Purchase

$0

$704,000-$761,000

$781,673-$839,000

$0

$844,000-$906,000

$0

$1,013,000-$1,088,000

$210,000

$210,000

$152,000-$172,000

$0

$0

$0

$0

Estimated re-sale

$125,000-$175,000

$125,000-$175,000

$75,000-$125,000

$25,000-$75,000

$25,000-$75,000

$10,000-$25,000

$10,000-$25,000

Other benefits

Same Specifications

Sister trucks

Sister trucks

Same Specifications

Sister trucks

Same Specifications

Sister trucks

2022

2022/2023

2024/2025

2026

2026/2027

2031

2031/2032

$70,000

$70,000/$73,500

$77,000-$81,000

$84,000

$84,000/$87,500

$101,000

$101,500/$105,000

Maintenance Cost Savings

Replacement Year
Lease Cost per Engine

Recommendation
Maintain the standardization when replacing the apparatus which entails
replacing all four engines within a 12-month window.
Option 2 - Replace two engines at 11 years and two at 12 years lease in 2022 and
2023.

G-2 Old Business

MEMORANDUM
DATE:

January 25, 2021

TO

West Metro Fire-Rescue District Board

FROM:

Anne Norris, Board Secretary

RE:

Chief Evaluation Instrument

At the October Board meeting, there was a brief discussion about the instrument the
WMFRD Board uses to annually evaluate the Chief’s performance over the last year.
To provide some context the Board did overhaul the evaluation instrument in 2017 in an
effort to reflect the major competencies of a fire chief (broadly taken from the
International Fire Chiefs Association). The five general major competencies are:
-

Budget management
Organizational management
Communication
Community presence
Board direction

The current Chief’s evaluation instrument has the Chief’s annual goals reflected within
the 5 competencies and there is an area for general comments.
Prior to this, the evaluation instrument the Board used was more focused on fire
operations, which the Board really has no direct knowledge of.
The updated 2017 instrument was intended to follow the instrument and process the
Crystal City Council uses for my evaluation – that is, the evaluation is based on 18 core
competencies for city/county managers as outlined by the International City/County
Management Association (see attached). A consultant coordinates the evaluation
process and ratings for each competency are compared from year to year. The other
component of the Crystal evaluation is that every other year, the city manager’s direct
reports also provide feedback on the city manager’s performance which are shared with
the City Council and manager.
The performance appraisal form used by the New Hope Council for the city manager is
the standard form used for all employees. The council and manager agree on specific
goals and priorities to be accomplished for the year and those are listed in the form, with
a final status presented at the end of the year. There are also 11 different performance
factors, including technical/job knowledge, leadership, problem solving, etc., that the

council can use to rate the manager, with an overall performance rating at the end of
the form. That evaluation form is attached.
The Board should discuss the current Chief’s evaluation instrument and determine what
revisions are needed.

Attach:
-

2020 Chief’s evaluation instrument
City manager competencies
New Hope evaluation instrument

West Metro Fire–Rescue
District
Performance Assessment Tool

Fire Chief
Name: Sarah Larson Date: 2020

Description
This tool is intended to promote accurate assessment of the performance of the Fire Chief, and to create a
framework for ongoing improvement. Each category describes an area of work performance, with
corresponding goals set annually by the Chief and the Board.

Instructions
For each category, rate the Chief based on the following scale:




Employee consistently demonstrates excellence with no deficits and
Exceeds Expectations:
some extraordinary strengths, with little or no room for major improvements.
Meets Expectations: Employee consistently demonstrates fully acceptable competence in this area.
May have some areas of excellence, and/or a few limited areas in need of improvement
Below Expectations: Employee must improve performance in one or more areas immediately.

Ratings of Exceeds Expectations or Below Expectations must be supported by comments that outline the
areas of exception – positive or negative – that led to the rating. Helpful input includes specific examples,
data, or observable incidents that illustrate and/or substantiate the evaluation.
The Fire Chief is the senior executive of the District leadership team and “an officer among officers.” He or she
sets and enforces District policy, and sets the tone for all members of the District. He or she exhibits broad
and deep familiarity with all technical aspects of firefighting, and the ability to lead the leadership team and
set the tone for the District in maintaining readiness and pursuing excellence.
The Fire Chief is also accountable to the District Board for administration and leadership of the District. The
Fire Chief is expected to have the following competencies: budget management; organizational management;
communication; community presence; and providing input to the Board and implementing Board direction.
The Fire Chief is a talented strategic leader and a committed mentor to current and aspiring command staff.

1

Budget Management
The Fire Chief is responsible for preparing and administering the budget for the District including
implementing long-term financial planning that reflects strategic planning and is reflective of the District’s
priorities.
2020 Goals:
1. Execute 2020 general operating budget and capital plan
2. Monitor use of special fund (donations)
3. Monitor special pension fund for adequacy
4. Execute capital projects
5. Complete 2019 audit
6. Develop 2021 general operating budget and capital budgets
7. Evaluate capital plan for long-term needs
8. Monitor newly created budget reserve line.
Exceeds Expectations
Understands the importance of
managing the budget. Recommends
innovative, cost-saving approaches to
department needs.

Meets Expectations
Consistently demonstrates fully
acceptable competence in this area.
May have some areas of excellence,
and/or a few limited areas in need of
improvement.

Below Expectations
Annual budget rarely met, expenditures
routinely exceed revenues. Does not
anticipate for operational or capital
needs of the District.

Exceeds Expectations
Meets Expectations
Below Expectations
Comments: ________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________

2

Organizational Management
The Fire Chief is responsible for understanding the basic principles of fire service delivery including staff
training and effectiveness, organizing work operations, motivating and coaching staff, establishing and
coordinating timetables for projects and program implementation.
2020 Goals:
1. Evaluate organization – training, leadership and utilization of personnel
2. Establish work/life balance; delegate duties appropriately to allow for vacation leave
3. Develop goals for subordinates
4. Be a positive role model within the organization
5. Continue leadership development for Chief and staff
6. Promote apprentice firefighters to firefighters
7. Emergency management training including EOC activation
8. Update department employee handbook
9. Review accidents and develop corresponding safety training at department drills
10. Records retention program
11. Update operational guidelines
12. Evaluate need for 2020 recruitment
13. Create continuity of operations plan
Exceeds Expectations

Meets Expectations

Below Expectations

Demonstrated knowledge of fire
operations is outstanding. Stays
current with trends and demonstrates
initiative and expertise to manage
and lead the District.

Consistently demonstrates the ability
to manage the District. May have
some areas of excellence, and/or a
few limited areas in need of
improvement.

Does not have skills necessary to
manage District operations and staff.

Exceeds Expectations
Meets Expectations
Below Expectations
Comments: ________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________

3

Communication
The Fire Chief is responsible for ensuring that ideas and information are shared within the District as well as in
the community the District serves. Communication also requires effective interpersonal skills, influencing and
negotiating, partnering with other agencies, media relations and advocating for policies and programs.
2020 Goals:
1. Collaborating with other city departments and organizations
2. Coordinate with New Hope regarding the cleaning of Station 3 metal facade
3. Launch CodeRed crisis communication software
Exceeds Expectations
Understands and uses communication
as a tool. Seeks out communication to
resolve misunderstandings and
conflicts.

Meets Expectations
Consistently clear communications –
rare misunderstandings. Listens well
and comprehends meanings of
conversations. Seeks clarification.

Below Expectations
Often unclear communications
resulting in frequent
misunderstandings. Does not listen
well to others. Behavior discourages
open communication.

Exceeds Expectations
Meets Expectations
Below Expectations
Comments: ________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________

4

Community Presence
The Fire Chief is responsible for the District maintaining a positive presence in the community, not just in
emergency circumstances. The District is a community partner and participates in community events, to the
extent resources allow. The Fire Chief manages interactions with other agencies and promotes
interjurisdictional cooperation.
2020 Goals:
1. Participate in community events
2. CERT on-going training
3. Home Safety Survey program
4. Execute an Open House
5. Execute an Honor Guard training at Camp Ripley
Exceeds Expectations
Actively works with other agencies to
accomplish mutual goals. Offers
support to other agencies as
appropriate. Instills confidence in the
public.

Meets Expectations
Able to work effectively with other
agencies. Supports the goals of the
District.

Below Expectations
Routinely fails to work well with other
agencies. Puts individual interests
above those of the District.

Exceeds Expectations
Meets Expectations
Below Expectations
Comments: ________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________

5

Board Direction
The Fire Chief is responsible for implementing policies and executing decisions made by the District Board of
Directors. The Fire Chief is also expected to offer input into Board policy discussions and recommendations
for Board policy decisions.
2020 Goals:
1. Research implementation of firefighter physicals
2. Research replacement alternatives of major apparatus and present to Board
Exceeds Expectations
Promotes and supports the District.
Consistently brings well-researched
recommendations to Board and
executes Board direction.

Meets Expectations
Accepts and supports Board direction
regardless of personal position.
Represents District in positive manner,

Below Expectations
Demonstrates negative attitude
towards public, other agencies or the
District.

Exceeds Expectations
Meets Expectations
Below Expectations
Comments: ________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________

6

Comments on Overall Assessment

Signature of Person Completing the Assessment______________________________
Printed Name_______________________________ Date ________________________

7

CITY OF NEW HOPE
Employee:

Employee Number:

Meeting Dates:

Department:

Position:

A.

Length Of Time In This Position:

B.

This appraisal covers the following time period:

From:

To:

C.

PART I: EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL
Instruction Highlights (Refer to full Instructions Manual for more detail regarding the appraisal process)
A. Beginning Of The Year
1. Identify the overall importance of each performance factor by selecting the appropriate rating.
H - High Importance
M - Medium Importance
L - Lower Importance
2. Identify goals or objectives for the year.
3. Review the overall importance of each factor based on the goals/objectives established in step #2.
4. Discuss expectations for the employee’s performance on all performance factors and goals/objectives.
B. Mid Year
1. Review steps in A, making any changes required to acknowledge significant changes in the job.
2. Complete the “Interim Status” towards meeting goals/objectives.
3. Review highlights of the employee’s performance and discuss any needed improvements.
C. End Of The Year
1. For each performance factor, read the descriptions for all 5 levels of performance. The descriptions
should be used as a guide in selecting a rating.
2. Check the appropriate rating and supply supporting comments for each rating.
3. Check the overall performance rating and supply appropriate summary comments.
4. Sign, date and proceed to Part II.

I:\Perform\Appraise.dot

GOALS/OBJECTIVES
(Specific to a department, position, or employee)
Activity

Interim Status

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
(Review the overall importance of each performance factor based on the goals/objectives established above.)

Final Status

Performance Factors
1.

Importance
Medium

TECHNICAL/JOB KNOWLEDGE - Possesses appropriate knowledge of the job; keeps abreast of new developments, technology, and trends.
Unsatisfactory/Developmental

Satisfactory

Good

Very Good

Exceptional

Knowledge of the job needs to improve based
on current requirements of the position. May fail
to perform essential functions of job.

Performs job within defined job parameters.
Basic knowledge of technology is being
utilized on the job.

Well informed on all phases of job. In
most cases, applies available technology to
the job. Rarely requires guidance.

Possesses full understanding of job and
demonstrates it. Exchanges job knowledge
with other employees.

Knows and keeps abreast of latest
technology applicable to position. Has
thorough knowledge of job and how it
relates to overall operation of the City.

Supporting Comments:
2.

Importance
High

COMMUNICATIONS - Communicates in written and oral form with internal and external customers.
Unsatisfactory/Developmental

Satisfactory

Good

Very Good

Exceptional

Communications are poorly organized, vague, or
incomplete, causing misunderstandings or
mistakes. Behavior occasionally discourages
communication. May not listen well to others.

Usually conveys ideas in an understandable
manner; listens to others.

Communicates subject matter in an
understandable manner; rarely
misunderstands; seeks clarification; active
listener; respects the value of others’
opinions.

Communicates clearly and concisely;
sensitive to audience; listens to different
viewpoints with an open mind.

Demonstrates exceptional ability to
communicate ideas, opinions, and
instructions with others; consistently alert
and sensitive listener. Uses strong
communication skills when dealing with
misunderstandings.

Supporting Comments:
3.

Importance
High

CUSTOMER RELATIONS - Develops rapport with people at all levels; establishes and maintains cooperative relationships and deals with others in a tactful manner .
Unsatisfactory/Developmental

Satisfactory

Good

Very Good

Exceptional

Frequently not as helpful or supportive as
desired; does not recognize customer
relationships. May lack follow through; action
may result in customer complaints; displays
occasional moodiness.

Recognizes customer relationships. Usually
responds to customer inquiries as
appropriate.

Understands and responds to customer
needs in a positive, courteous, and
professional style; cooperative with others;
accepts constructive feedback; maintains
confidentiality when appropriate.

Is consistently aware of a customer
relationship when dealing with both external
and internal customers; demonstrates a high
level of interest in meeting customer needs;
seeks information not readily available; is
amicable and polite at all times; is a positive
representative of the City.

Performs exceptionally to meet the needs
of the customer (by either conventional
methods or utilizing creative
unconventional methods); consistently
displays a positive attitude; praised by
customers.

Supporting Comments:

Importance
Medium

4. TEAMWORK/LEADERSHIP - Works and interacts with others and understands role in accomplishing group’s overall goals.
Unsatisfactory/Developmental

Satisfactory

Good

Has little team concept and may resist working
with others; may be possessive about work and
unwilling to allow assistance from others; often
disrupts morale with petty complaints or gossip;
may blame others for errors.

Works as a team member, shares adequate
Supports supervisory/
information when requested; will usually assist departmental/organizational goals and
policies; participates cooperatively with
co-workers.
others; volunteers to assist even if not part
of “job description”; encourages others to
take an active, positive role in the
organization.

Very Good

Exceptional

Works to maintain respectful and positive
working relationships; seeks suggestions
from others and offers input to others;
frequently takes initiative to be an active
team player including participation on
committees; instills confidence in others.

Encourages others to participate;
addresses conflict in a timely fashion;
assumes fair share of responsibility to
attain group’s goals; acts as a role model
for others; maintains balanced and
effective emotional state while under
stress.

Supporting Comments:
5.

Importance
High

MOTIVATION - Displays initiative, drive, and energy to accomplish job responsibilities.
Unsatisfactory/Developmental

Satisfactory

Good

Shows little desire to improve performance; may
not always display positive attitude toward the
department or City goals; may resist new
assignments; frequently requires supervision or
direction.

Performs routine requirements of job; attempts Takes responsibility in performing all
areas of work; willing to expend extra
to improve job skills.
effort; is a self-starter.

Very Good

Exceptional

Readily accepts and understands job
responsibilities; looks for ways to improve
self through increased knowledge and skills;
volunteers to assume additional
responsibilities.

Accepts new job assignments as a
challenge; spends free time learning new
techniques; seeks and takes advantage of
opportunities; demonstrates energy and
enthusiasm.

Supporting Comments:
6.

Importance
Medium

DECISION MAKING/PROBLEM SOLVING - Identifies problems, evaluates options, and achieves sound conclusions.
Unsatisfactory/Developmental

Satisfactory

Good

Very Good

Exceptional

Has difficulty recognizing problems; may ignore
problems; shows lack of good judgment; makes
decisions without factual or adequate
information.

Considers standard solutions to solve
problems; solves problems brought to his/he
attention (sometimes with supervisor’s
assistance); decisions usually lead to
satisfactory results.

Accepts problem resolution as a challenge;
accurately determines level of seriousness;
considers relevant factors and risks;
consistently makes reasonable decisions
reflective of training and experience;
decisions result in short-term solutions
without negative long-term effects.

Demonstrates sound information analysis
and decision making techniques; long-term
impact of decisions are considered prior to
selecting best alternative; assists others in
problem solving tasks.

Consistently anticipates and identifies
problems and develops plans to correct
them for long-term solutions; draws
upon multiple resources for solutions;
strives for decisions resulting in
collaborative solutions.

Supporting Comments:

7.

Importance
Low

SAFETY - Works safely and uses safety equipment when necessary. Follows proper safety measures. Reports safety hazards to responsible authority.
Unsatisfactory/Developmental

Satisfactory

Good

Performs duties with little or no respect for
safety; may create unsafe working conditions to
self and others.

Usually observes safety rules and regulations; rarel Regularly promotes safety; practices safe
acts in an unsafe manner; attends safety training work habits; points out hazards to coworkers; willingly attends safety training;
when scheduled.
operates and maintains equipment as
appropriate.

Very Good

Exceptional

Strongly promotes the use of safety
equipment; actively participates in training
programs; promptly reports conditions
needing attention to proper authority; does
not compromise safety.

Always alert to unsafe situations for self
and others; has excellent safety record;
always identifies and reports safety
hazards to proper authority; looks for
opportunities to improve safety
conditions and eliminate safety hazards.

Supporting Comments:
8.

Importance
Medium

INNOVATION - Offers suggestions for improvement and develops new and unique approaches. Is open, constructive, and positive in response to new ideas and work methods.
Unsatisfactory/Developmental

Satisfactory

Good

Reluctant to try new ideas or participate in
organizational changes; may criticize
organization for enacting changes.

Recognizes the need for creative thinking or
Frequently has new ideas and supports
solutions; offers suggestions for improvements;
those from others; reacts to change as a
tends to be logical in approach to alternatives; usual positive experience.
adapts to changing conditions and procedures.

Very Good

Exceptional

Consistently reviews current work
methods and functions in search of
improvement; expresses and offers new
ideas; promotes positive outlook of
change.

Shows ingenuity; has ability to
recognize effectiveness of a new
idea/technique before implementation;
always strives to increase proficiency;
willingly adapts to change.

Supporting Comments:
9.

Importance
High

QUALITY OF WORK - Performs accurate, neat, and thorough work in a timely manner.
Unsatisfactory/Developmental

Satisfactory

Work may be inaccurate due to lack of attention
to detail; may hastily complete tasks which
results in poor product; may spend excessive
time completing assignments or deviate from
assigned task.

Usually performs work with appropriate level o Consistently completes daily tasks and
meets job standards; does follow-up to
effort; work occasionally requires correction.
detect errors and corrects them; meets
deadlines.

Supporting Comments:

Good

Very Good

Exceptional

Pays attention to detail and accuracy;
completed projects always meet and
normally exceed job requirements.

Performs work in a manner that is
consistently accurate, thorough, detailed,
timely and complete.

10.

Importance
High

ATTENDANCE - Demonstrates an appropriate attendance record; exhibits punctuality in all work related duties including lunch and break schedules.
Unsatisfactory/Developmental

Satisfactory

Good

Is rarely prepared to begin workday on time or is
slow to start; abuses breaks; frequently absent.

Is usually prepared to begin work on time; usually Consistently prepared to start work on
takes time off in manner prescribed by Personnel
time; takes lunches and breaks during
Rules and Regulations; usually on time for meetings allotted time; takes time off as prescribed
by Personnel Rules and Regulations;
provides adequate notice of leave time.

Very Good

Exceptional

Always prepared to start work on time;
takes appropriate breaks; exercises good
judgment in use of leave time for benefit
of self and organization; accurately
accounts for time off.

Displays outstanding attendance
record; sets examples to peers;
extremely punctual; never abuses leave
time.

Supporting Comments:
11.

Importance
High

PLANNING AND TIME MANAGEMENT - Structures activities and recognizes and responds to priorities. Uses time efficiently.
Unsatisfactory/Developmental

Satisfactory

Good

Very Good

Exceptional

Unorganized; unable to identify priority tasks;
may exhibit costly work habits such as personal
phone calls, excessive socializing, daydreaming,
etc.

Usually has work organized efficiently; can usually
prioritize simpler tasks but may struggle with more
complex issues; completes work in acceptable time
frame under normal supervision.

Organizes work; recognizes and adjusts
priorities according to work demands;
completes daily work on or ahead of
schedule using time efficiently;
supportive of cross-training.

Consistently organizes and prioritizes work;
sets realistic timetables and develops
contingency plans for projects; seeks ways
to better manage time; promotes crosstraining.

Very organized; accurately assesses
priorities, goals, and deadlines;
consistently maximizes use of resources
and time.

Supporting Comments:

OVERALL PERFORMANCE RATING
Unsatisfactory/Developmental

Satisfactory

Good

Very Good

Exceptional

Supervisor Summary Comments (required):

Employee Summary Comments (optional):

MID-YEAR REVIEW
Employee Signature _________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Date _______________________________________________________

(Note: Employee signature does not necessarily indicate agreement with the review, only that the appraisal has been discussed with him/her.)

Supervisor Signature ________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Date _______________________________________________________

ANNUAL REVIEW
Employee Signature _________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Date _______________________________________________________

(Note: Employee signature does not necessarily indicate agreement with the review, only that the appraisal has been discussed with him/her.)

Supervisor Signature ________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Date _______________________________________________________

Part II: JOB AND CAREER DEVELOPMENT
A.

How is the nature or scope of this job likely to change in the next year? In the next 3-5 years?

B.

Identify specific developmental activities to improve performance in this job over the next year.
1.
2.
3.
4.

C. Given the changing job expectations and demands at the City, identify long-term (3-5 years) career aspirations and developmental ideas.
1.
2.
3.
4.

Employee Signature _______________________________________________________ Date ____________________
Supervisor Signature ______________________________________________________

Date ____________________

(Note: Signatures do not indicate commitment to these comments, only that potential job changes and
developmental activities have been discussed between the employee and the supervisor.)

(Original to the Personnel File; copy to the employee and supervisor)
PA-1
01/00

H-1 New Business
MEMORANDUM
DATE:

February 10, 2021

TO:

West Metro Fire-Rescue District Board

FROM:

Sarah Larson, WMFRD Chief

RE:

Federal Public Assistance Grant for COVID-19 Expenditures

History
The WMFRD applied for FEMA Public Assistance Grants to cover unbudgeted labor costs and PPE related to
the COVID-19 response. The first of these grants has been awarded in the amount of $58,247.70.
Recommendation
Staff recommends the Board accepts the FEMA Public Assistance Grant in the amount of $58,247.70.

H-2 New Business

MEMORANDUM

DATE:

February 10,2021

TO:

West Metro Fire-Rescue District Board

FROM:

Kirk McDonald, WMFRD Board member New Hope City Manager
Anne Norris, WMFRD Board member and Crystal City Manager

RE:

2021 Goals – Chief Larson

During Chief Larson’s 2020 performance evaluation discussion in December, it was
agreed the Chief would develop 2021 goals for President Laurant’s consideration. The
Chief met with the city managers and they worked together to update the goals. The
goals have been reviewed by President Laurant and are attached.
Chief Larson’s performance evaluation has been updated to reflect the 2021 goals.
The Board should accept Chief Larson’s 2021 goals.

2021 Goals
WMFRD Fire Chief
GOAL

MEASUREMENT

Evaluate Organization

Maintain a high quality fire department through utilization of personnel, recruitment, training
and leadership

Establish a work/life
balance and delegate
appropriate
administrative and
operational duties to
full-time staff

Delegate tasks: recruitment, POC timesheets, training, and portions of Board packets, as
appropriate

Develop goals with
subordinates.

Part of each full-time employee’s evaluation process
2021 Goals due January 2021

Be a positive role
model.

Foster ethical behavior through the organization by personal example and management
practices.

Execute 2021 GOB

2021 Budget reflects true costs of WMFRD operations and report to Board included in Chief’s
Report.

Monitor use of special
fund

Monitor incoming donations and expenditures in the following categories –

Monitor Special
Pension Fund for
adequacy

Based on annual State Aid contributions

Execute 2021 capital
projects.

Bimonthly reports - included in Chief’s report

Collaborate with other
city departments and
organizations.

Regularly attend senior staff meetings in Crystal and New Hope, meet with the 2 city managers
monthly to discuss issues and keep updated on operations, attend city council meetings/work

96001 · Honor Guard
96002 · WMFRD Explorer Program
96003 · Fire Department Instructors Conference (FDIC)
96004 · Home Safety Survey Program
96005 · Restrictions-Equipment
96006 · Restrictions-Retirement
96007 · WMFRD Health & Wellness Program
96010 · Restrictions-Other

Computers/Pagers
Station 3 Flooring
Gear Grid Upgrades
Garage Door Maintenance
Day Room Furniture
Bathroom Project
AED
Training Mannequins
Smoke Machines
Staff Vehicle

$20,000
$40,000
$30,000
$10,000
$10,000
$72,000
$2,500
$6,000
$4,500
$55,000

sessions a minimum of 3 times annually to keep the councils informed about fire department
operations and attend professional organizations
Continue leadership
development for Chief
and staff.

Internal Officer Training, Honor Guard training, FDIC,

Recruit and hire 6-10
POC firefighters.

12/31/2021

Emergency
Management Training
including EOC
activation

Execute two Emergency Management trainings by 12/31/2021

Update Department
Employee Handbook

12/31/2021

Review Accidents and
develop corresponding
safety training at
department drills

On-going

Records Retention
Program

On-going

Home Safety Survey
Program

12/31/2021
Conduct 30 surveys in 2021

Presence in the
Communities

Participate in community events including New Hope Festival, Frolics, Bike Rodeo, Open House,
Airport Open House and Wet and Wild Days

Update Operational
Guidelines

On-going

Complete 2020 Audit

Present report to the Board by 7/31/2021

Develop 2022 GOB and
Capital Plan

7/2021

Evaluate Capital Plan
for Long Term Needs

12/31/2021

Develop New Engine
Specifications

12/31/2021

Execute an Honor
Guard Training at
Camp Ripley

4/1/2021

Execute an Open
House

12/31/2021

Review accidents and provide recommendations for change.

Create Continuity of
Operations Plan
(COOP)

12/31/2021

Transition Department
to a Normal Mode of
Operations

6/30/3021

Secure Public
Assistance Grants

12/31/2021

Implement Automatic
Paging

Work with Hennepin County Dispatch to implement automatic paging and station alerting.
12/31/2021

Execute 2021 Fire
Academy

12/31/2021

Research the purchase
of Ballistic Vests for
Fire Department

Compile information and make a recommendation to whether or not we need these for WM.
12/31/2021

Promote officer
candidates and chiefin-training

7/31/2021

Coordinate with New
Hope to develop
capital improvement
plan for building
components at Station
3 that are city’s
responsibility

12/31/2021

Review City of Crystal
long term plan for
capital improvements
needed at Stations 1
and 2 that are the
city’s responsibility

12/31/2021

West Metro Fire–Rescue
District
Performance Assessment Tool

Fire Chief
Name: Sarah Larson Date: 2021

Description
This tool is intended to promote accurate assessment of the performance of the Fire Chief, and to create a
framework for ongoing improvement. Each category describes an area of work performance, with
corresponding goals set annually by the Chief and the Board.

Instructions
For each category, rate the Chief based on the following scale:




Employee consistently demonstrates excellence with no deficits and
Exceeds Expectations:
some extraordinary strengths, with little or no room for major improvements.
Meets Expectations: Employee consistently demonstrates fully acceptable competence in this area.
May have some areas of excellence, and/or a few limited areas in need of improvement
Below Expectations: Employee must improve performance in one or more areas immediately.

Ratings of Exceeds Expectations or Below Expectations must be supported by comments that outline the
areas of exception – positive or negative – that led to the rating. Helpful input includes specific examples,
data, or observable incidents that illustrate and/or substantiate the evaluation.
The Fire Chief is the senior executive of the District leadership team and “an officer among officers.” He or she
sets and enforces District policy, and sets the tone for all members of the District. He or she exhibits broad
and deep familiarity with all technical aspects of firefighting, and the ability to lead the leadership team and
set the tone for the District in maintaining readiness and pursuing excellence.
The Fire Chief is also accountable to the District Board for administration and leadership of the District. The
Fire Chief is expected to have the following competencies: budget management; organizational management;
communication; community presence; and providing input to the Board and implementing Board direction.
The Fire Chief is a talented strategic leader and a committed mentor to current and aspiring command staff.

1

Budget Management
The Fire Chief is responsible for preparing and administering the budget for the District including
implementing long-term financial planning that reflects strategic planning and is reflective of the District’s
priorities.
2021 Goals:
1. Execute 2021 general operating budget
2. Monitor use of special fund (donations)
3. Monitor special pension fund for adequacy
4. Execute 2021 capital projects
5. Complete 2020 audit
6. Develop 2022 general operating budget and capital budgets
7. Evaluate capital plan for long-term needs
8. Secure Public Assistance Grants
9. Coordinate with New Hope to develop capital improvement plan for building components at
Station 3 that are city’s responsibility

10. Review City of Crystal long term plan for capital improvements needed at Stations 1 and 2 that are the city’s
responsibility

Exceeds Expectations
Understands the importance of
managing the budget. Recommends
innovative, cost-saving approaches to
department needs.

Meets Expectations
Consistently demonstrates fully
acceptable competence in this area.
May have some areas of excellence,
and/or a few limited areas in need of
improvement.

Below Expectations
Annual budget rarely met, expenditures
routinely exceed revenues. Does not
anticipate for operational or capital
needs of the District.

Exceeds Expectations
Meets Expectations
Below Expectations
Comments: ________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________

2

Organizational Management
The Fire Chief is responsible for understanding the basic principles of fire service delivery including staff
training and effectiveness, organizing work operations, motivating and coaching staff, establishing and
coordinating timetables for projects and program implementation.
2021 Goals:
1. Evaluate organization – training, leadership and utilization of personnel
2. Establish work/life balance; delegate duties appropriately to allow for vacation leave
3. Develop goals for subordinates
4. Be a positive role model within the organization
5. Continue leadership development for Chief and staff
6. Emergency management training
7. Update department employee handbook
8. Review accidents and develop corresponding safety training at department drills
9. Records retention program
10. Update operational guidelines
11. Recruit and hire 6-10 POC firefighters
12. Create continuity of operations plan
13.
14.
15.
16.

Transition department to a normal mode of operations
Execute 2021 Fire Academy
Research the purchase of ballistic vests
Promote officer candidates and chief-in-training

Exceeds Expectations

Meets Expectations

Below Expectations

Demonstrated knowledge of fire
operations is outstanding. Stays
current with trends and demonstrates
initiative and expertise to manage
and lead the District.

Consistently demonstrates the ability
to manage the District. May have
some areas of excellence, and/or a
few limited areas in need of
improvement.

Does not have skills necessary to
manage District operations and staff.

Exceeds Expectations
Meets Expectations
Below Expectations
Comments: ________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________

3

Communication
The Fire Chief is responsible for ensuring that ideas and information are shared within the District as well as in
the community the District serves. Communication also requires effective interpersonal skills, influencing and
negotiating, partnering with other agencies, media relations and advocating for policies and programs.
2021 Goals:
1. Collaborate with other city departments and organizations
2. Implement automatic paging
Exceeds Expectations
Understands and uses communication
as a tool. Seeks out communication to
resolve misunderstandings and
conflicts.

Meets Expectations
Consistently clear communications –
rare misunderstandings. Listens well
and comprehends meanings of
conversations. Seeks clarification.

Below Expectations
Often unclear communications
resulting in frequent
misunderstandings. Does not listen
well to others. Behavior discourages
open communication.

Exceeds Expectations
Meets Expectations
Below Expectations
Comments: ________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________

4

Community Presence
The Fire Chief is responsible for the District maintaining a positive presence in the community, not just in
emergency circumstances. The District is a community partner and participates in community events, to the
extent resources allow. The Fire Chief manages interactions with other agencies and promotes
interjurisdictional cooperation.
2021 Goals:
1. Be a presence in the community by participating in events
2. Conduct 30 Home Safety Surveys
3. Execute an Open House
4. Execute an Honor Guard training at Camp Ripley
Exceeds Expectations
Actively works with other agencies to
accomplish mutual goals. Offers
support to other agencies as
appropriate. Instills confidence in the
public.

Meets Expectations
Able to work effectively with other
agencies. Supports the goals of the
District.

Below Expectations
Routinely fails to work well with other
agencies. Puts individual interests
above those of the District.

Exceeds Expectations
Meets Expectations
Below Expectations
Comments: ________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________

5

Board Direction
The Fire Chief is responsible for implementing policies and executing decisions made by the District Board of
Directors. The Fire Chief is also expected to offer input into Board policy discussions and recommendations
for Board policy decisions.
2021 Goals:
1. Develop new engine specifications
Exceeds Expectations
Promotes and supports the District.
Consistently brings well-researched
recommendations to Board and
executes Board direction.

Meets Expectations
Accepts and supports Board direction
regardless of personal position.
Represents District in positive manner,

Below Expectations
Demonstrates negative attitude
towards public, other agencies or the
District.

Exceeds Expectations
Meets Expectations
Below Expectations
Comments: ________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________________

6

Comments on Overall Assessment

Signature of Person Completing the Assessment______________________________
Printed Name_______________________________ Date ________________________

7

MEMORANDUM
DATE:

February 10, 2021

TO:

West Metro Fire-Rescue District Board

FROM:

Sarah Larson, WMFRD Chief

RE:

Recommended Changes to WMFRD Employee Handbook

H-3 New Business

BACKGROUND:
The initial West Metro Fire-Rescue Employee Handbook was approved by the Board of Directors in
June of 2011. There were changes to the grievance/complaint procedure from the previous policy and
that issue was discussed at the joint council work sessions that were conducted between November,
2011 and May, 2012. One of the top priorities of the issues list from the joint council meetings was to
revise the grievance procedure policy and to review the entire Employee Handbook.
In June/July, 2012, a new District Employee Review Board was established and a new
grievance/complaint policy was approved by the WMFRD Board of Directors.
Also in June, 2012, the entire Employee Handbook was submitted to the League of Minnesota Cities
by city representatives for an outside professional opinion. The League reviewed the handbook in its
entirety in July and submitted comments back to the cities. The League provided summary comments
on each section of the handbook and provided handwritten notes on individual pages of the
handbook. The League did comment that in general, they felt the handbook was a well-written
document.
Subsequent to the receipt of the comments, the city managers, HR representatives from each city,
and Chief Larson conducted several meetings and reviewed the comments/handbook page-by-page.
Many of the comments/clarifications by the League were inserted in the new draft.
The revised draft document incorporated new language where all changes were denoted and the first
revision was formally approved by the Board on September 19, 2012.
As part of the Board’s ongoing priorities it was recommended to complete an annual review of the
WMFRD Employee Handbook.
The WMFRD Employee Handbook was reviewed and revised in 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018.
In 2014 the revisions encompassed an overall review and changes from the reorganization. 2015’s
most prominent revision was to the grievance section. In 2016 suggested revisions by AEM were
made to the way we handle some of our expenditures and how we track District purchases. On
December 13, 2017 the Board approved a revision that included a review and update of the entire
handbook and added the WMFRD Ethos. In 2018 an overall review and update was done on the
handbook and approved by the Board. In 2019 a review and update was completed on the handbook.
In February 2020 an additional section outlining firefighter training was approved by the Board. In
2020 a review and update were completed on the handbook. Changes to our respiratory program
were updated with the new SCBA. The yellow highlights are additions and the light blue highlights are
deletions.

RECOMMENDATION:
It is recommended that the newly revised/updated handbook be reviewed and considered for formal
approval.
2021 REVISIONS:

Respiratory Program

Section 12.45

The purpose of this program is to provide guidelines for the selection, safe use, training, operation, inspection,
maintenance, repair, storage, testing, medical evaluation of personnel, quality of air and record keeping of our
Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) and Filtering Facepiece Particulate Respirators.
The following guidelines will be evaluated annually and changed by the WMFRD administration as deemed
necessary to improve efficiency and/or safety.
SCBA General
1. Selection of Apparatus:
The SCBA used by the WMFRD shall be a full facepiece pressure demand type that has been certified by
NIOSH. The SCBA used by this department shall be selected on the basis of reliability and serviceability dealing
with the hazards that fire personnel encounter and are exposed to.
Each member of the WMFRD that is permitted to use SCBA equipment shall be issued a facepiece
for his/her own exclusive use.
Each SCBA harness assembly will be equipped with a personal alert safety system.
Only fire department issued glasses spectacle kits shall be worn with the SCBA facepiece.
Use of soft contact lenses shall be permitted during SCBA use, provided that the member has worn soft
contact lenses for at least six months without any problems previously demonstrated successful long-term
contact lens use.
2. Medical Evaluations and Fit Testing:
The WMFRD has provided their chosen physician or licensed health care professional with a copy of this
operational guideline along with CFR 1910.134.
Each recruit of the WMFRD shall be evaluated by a physician or licensed health care professional to determine
their ability to use SCBA. This medical evaluation shall be done according to OSHA protocol and be completed
before becoming a firefighter and annually thereafter. A medical evaluation shall be completed before any
firefighter is fit tested or required to use SCBA.
The WMFRD shall ensure that all firefighters are using a tight-fitting facepiece. No firefighter shall have any
facial hair growth that comes between the sealing surface of the facepiece and the face or that interferes with
valve function.
WMFRD firefighters shall have a fit test prior to initial use of their facepiece; whenever a different model or
size facepiece issued; whenever visual observations are made of a firefighter’s physical appearance that could

affect the fit of their facepiece, and at least annually. All fit tests shall be done according to OSHA accepted
protocol.
Only WMFRD firefighters with a properly fitting facepiece shall be permitted by the fire department to
function in a hazardous atmosphere with SCBA.
All other Personal Protective Equipment must be properly worn so as not to interfere with the seal of the
facepiece to the face of each user.
3. Respiratory Program Administrator SCBA Coordinator and SCBA Technicians:
The duties of the Respiratory Program Administrator SCBA Coordinator shall be carried out by the Assistant
Chief of Logistics.
The Respiratory Program Administrator SCBA Coordinator is responsible for the following:
Coordinating the repair of the SCBA and maintaining accurate and accessible repair records.
1. Coordinates with the SCBA technicians, and station officers to assure that prompt repairs are made to
all “red tagged” SCBA equipment.
2. Coordinates with the SCBA technicians to purchase repair and replacement parts.
Coordinating the SCBA preventative maintenance program and maintaining accurate and accessible
maintenance and inspection records.
1. Coordinates with SCBA technicians and station officers to assure that required inspections are
conducted of all SCBA and personal facepieces.
2. Identifies SCBA failure trends and takes appropriate corrective action to alleviate the situation.
Assisting with and coordinating all on-going SCBA training and fit testing. Maintaining accurate and accessible
training and fit test records.
Evaluating respiratory program effectiveness.
SCBA technicians must meet the requirements of firefighter. Technicians must become Certified Maintenance
Technicians within one year of appointment.
SCBA Technicians are responsible for the following:
Repair of the SCBA equipment.
1. Assures that prompt repairs are made to “tagged” SCBA equipment.
2. Assures that accurate repair records are recorded and maintained.
Preventative maintenance program:
1. Completes the preventative maintenance program.
2. Identifies SCBA failure trends and makes recommendations for corrective actions to alleviate the
problem.
SCBA training and fit testing:
1. Assists with the annual training provided to the firefighters on the use and care of SCBA equipment and
operation of the air compressors for filling SCBA air bottles.
2. Assists with the training of new recruits in the areas of SCBA equipment and the air compressors for
filling SCBA air bottles.

4. Training and Information:
Prior to initial use and yearly annually thereafter all WMFRD firefighters shall be trained in the proper use and
limitations of the SCBA.
All firefighters must be able to demonstrate knowledge of at least the following:
1. Why SCBA are necessary and how improper fit, usage, or maintenance can compromise the protective
effect of the SCBA.
2. What the limitations and capabilities of the SCBA are.
3. How to use the SCBA effectively in emergency situations, including situations where the SCBA
malfunctions or fails.
a. Demonstrate emergency techniques using SCBA to assist other firefighters, conserve air and
show restriction in the use of the bypass valve.
b. Demonstrate the use of SCBA in limited or confined spaces.
4. How to inspect, don and doff, use, and check the seals of the SCBA.
5. How to maintain and store the SCBA.
6. How to recognize medical signs and symptoms that may limit or prevent the effective use of the SCBA.
7. Hazards and hazard assessment associated with the use of SCBA.
5. Record keeping:
The WMFRD will keep written records regarding medical evaluations, fit testing, training and maintenance of
our SCBA.
Records regarding medical evaluations will be kept by the designated health care provider and retained for the
length of each firefighter’s employment plus thirty years. These records will be accurate and accessible. They
will meet the requirements of 29 CFR 1910.1020.
Records regarding fit tests will include the following information and will be retained until the next fit test is
administered:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

The name or identification of the firefighter tested.
Type of fit test performed.
Specific make, model, style, and size of facepiece being tested.
Date of test.
Pass/fail results of the test.
The fit factor and strip chart recording or other recording of the test results for our Quantitative Fit
Test.

All SCBA are required to be certified inspected at least monthly per manufacturer’s recommendations. This
shall be done by documenting the date each inspection is performed, the name and signature of the person
completing the inspection, the findings of the inspection, and what remedial actions need to be taken. This
information shall be maintained until replaced by a subsequent inspection record.
A complete inventory record of all SCBA shall be kept. All SCBA facepieces, back pack/harness assemblies and
cylinders shall be given individual identification numbers.
An individual record shall be kept for each SCBA backpack and harness assembly. The following information
shall be included on the record:
1. Inventory number.

2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

Date of purchase.
Date of manufacture.
Date placed in service.
Maintenance and repair record.
Record of replacement parts and any upgrades.
Test performance information.

An individual record shall be kept for each SCBA regulator. The following information shall be included on the
record:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

Date of purchase.
Date of manufacture.
Date placed in service.
Maintenance and repair record.
Record of replacement parts and any upgrades
Test performance information.

A record shall be maintained for each SCBA cylinder. The following information shall be included on the
record:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

Inventory number.
Date of purchase.
Date of manufacture.
Date placed in service.
Hydrostatic test pressure and dates.
All information pertaining to repairs and maintenance of each cylinder.

Hydrostatic test dates shall be recorded on each cylinder according to the manufacturer’s instructions.
A record shall be maintained for each facepiece. The following information shall be included on the record:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Inventory number.
Date of purchase.
Name of firefighter that has been assigned the facepiece.
All information pertaining to repairs, maintenance, replacement parts, and upgrading of the facepiece.
All test performance information.

6. Safe Use:
SCBA shall be used anytime fire department personnel are engaged in any operations where they might
encounter atmospheres that are immediately dangerous to life or health (IDLH) or potentially IDLH or where
the atmosphere is unknown.
SCBA’s shall be used by all personnel operating in an area where the potential for a hazardous atmosphere
exists including, but not limited to:
•
•
•
•

Interior structural firefighting operations
Exterior structural firefighting operations where the potential for breathing smoke exists
Overhaul operations (even in the absence of visible smoke)
Fire Investigations

• Car fires
• Dumpster and rubbish fires
• Hazardous materials incidents in the Hot and Warm zones
• Confined space entry
• CO emergencies where the CO concentration exceeds the PEL (35ppm)
• Any time the Incident Commander or Safety Officer deems necessary
SCBA shall be used in any hazardous atmosphere.
SCBA shall be used in any atmosphere that is suspected to be hazardous.
SCBA shall be used in any atmosphere that may become hazardous.
SCBA shall be used when it is unknown if the atmosphere is hazardous.
SCBA shall be worn according to the manufacturer’s specifications.
WMFRD firefighters shall be monitored for indications of fatigue or other factors that may result in unsafe
conditions while they are operating in atmospheres requiring the use of SCBA. A mandatory rest period shall
be required for all firefighters after working with SCBA for the duration of two, thirty-minute bottles.
Firefighters will not be allowed back on SCBA unless directed by Incident Command.
WMFRD firefighters using SCBA shall operate in teams of two or more.
WMFRD firefighters using SCBA shall be able to communicate with each other and coordinate their activities.
Working time in Immediately Dangerous to Life and Health (IDLH) atmosphere shall be limited to ½ the
capacity of a firefighter’s cylinder unless the crew is working in the immediate vicinity of an exit or the
exterior. Incident Command shall be immediately informed and all members of a crew will exit the
Immediately Dangerous to Life and Health (IDLH) atmosphere together before any when one member’s low air
warning is activated.
Whenever operations require the use of SCBA an accountability system shall be put into place and personal
alert safety systems will be activated before crews enter the IDLH atmosphere.
Where WMFRD firefighters are involved in operations that require the use of SCBA, other than interior
structural firefighting, at least one member of the department shall be assigned to remain outside the area
where respiratory protection is required (IDLH atmosphere). This person shall be responsible for
accountability of the WMFRD firefighters using SCBA.
During interior structural firefighting at least two firefighters shall be located outside the area where
respiratory protection is required (IDLH atmosphere). One of these two firefighters may be assigned to an
additional role, such as incident commander or safety officer, so long as this individual is able to perform
assistance or rescue activities without jeopardizing the safety or health of any firefighter working at the
incident. This firefighter shall not be the pump operator.
During interior structural firefighting there shall be firefighters located outside of the IDLH atmosphere that
are trained and equipped to provide effective emergency rescue for the interior crews. This is not meant to
preclude firefighters from performing emergency rescue activities before an entire team has been assembled.

Firefighters using SCBA shall not compromise the protective integrity of the SCBA for any reason when
operating in IDLH, potentially IDLH, or undefined or hazardous atmospheres (including overhaul) by removing
the facepiece or disconnecting any portion of the SCBA that would allow the ambient atmosphere to be
breathed.
A reserve air supply shall be provided through the availability of spare SCBA cylinders and on-scene refill
capabilities.
Reserve SCBA shall be provided to maintain the required number in service when maintenance or repairs are
being conducted.
During filling of SCBA cylinders all personnel and operators shall be protected from the catastrophic failure of
the cylinder.
7. Acceptance Testing, Repairs, Maintenance and Care of SCBA:
Acceptance Testing:
Prior to being placed in service, all SCBA shall be tested and inspected by factory certified personnel.
Documentation of the testing shall be provided and included with the records of the SCBA. The following tests
shall be performed on all SCBA before being accepted by the WMFRD:
1. All major components shall be inspected for compatibility, completeness of assembly, and signs of
damage.
2. All components shall be tested for proper function and performance. Testing shall include
manipulation of all adjustable components such as slides, buckles, control valves, and levers.
Furthermore, the facepiece, regulator mechanism, alarm, and cylinder valve shall be tested on the
manufacturer’s test equipment for compliance with specifications.
Repairs:
Any SCBA that fails an inspection or is otherwise found to be defective must be removed from service and
“tagged” and the SCBA technician Assistant Chief of Logistics must shall be informed.
Only approved parts shall be used.
All repairs will be made by an authorized manufacturer’s service center according to manufacturer’s
recommendations.
Only qualified SCBA technicians shall make repairs to the SCBA.
Cleaning and Disinfecting:
Facepieces shall be cleaned and disinfected according to the manufacturer’s recommendations whenever
necessary to maintain them in a sanitary condition. SCBA assemblies and cylinders shall be cleaned per
manufacturers recommendations after exposure to an IDLH atmosphere.
Storage:
All SCBA shall be secured and regulators shall be stored in the belt storage cup in a manner that protects the
regulator openings.
All SCBA shall be stored in a ready-for-use condition and shall be protected from damage or exposure to rough
handling, excessive heat or cold, moisture or other elements.

All facepieces shall be stored in a department-issued bag and protected from damage, contamination, dirt,
dust, sunlight, extreme temperatures, excessive moisture, damaging chemicals, and deformation of the
facepiece and exhalation valve.
Inspection:
All firefighters shall inspect their facepiece for proper function and seal before and after each use; during
cleaning and monthly according to the manufacturer’s recommendations. The following checks will be
completed during each inspection:
1. Facepiece function and ability to make the proper seal. This shall be done with a negative pressure test
held for 10 seconds.
2. Tightness of connections.
3. Condition of various parts including, but not limited to, the facepiece, head straps, and valve.
4. Check all elastomeric parts for pliability and signs of deterioration.
Checks of all stored SCBA including regulators and warning devices shall be completed regularly and at a
minimum of monthly to determine that all are functioning properly.
All air cylinders shall be maintained in a fully charged state and shall be recharged when the pressure falls
below 4300 psi.
Breathing Air Quality and Use:
The compressed breathing air used by this department shall meet the following requirements:
1. Have a carbon dioxide content of 1000 PPM or less and a minimum air quality of Grade D.
2. No noticeable odor.
The compressed breathing air used by this department shall meet at least the requirements for Grade D
breathing air described in ANSI/Compressed Gas Association Commodity Specification for Air, G-7.1-1989, to
include:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Oxygen content (v/v) of 19.5-23.5%;
Hydrocarbon (condensed) content of 5 milligrams per cubic meter of air or less;
Carbon monoxide (CO) content of 10 ppm or less;
Carbon dioxide content of 1,000 ppm or less; and
Lack of noticeable odor.

The cylinders used by this department to supply breathing air shall be tested and maintained as prescribed in
the Shipping Container Specification Regulations of the Department of Transportation (49 CFR part 173 and
178 180). The moisture content in the cylinder shall not exceed a dew point of -50 degrees Fahrenheit at 1
atmosphere pressure.
The WMFRD has contracted with a qualified outside vendor to maintain and service the air compressor used
by this department. This vendor shall ensure that the air compressor meets the following requirements:
1. Prevents entry of contaminated air into the air-supply system.
2. Minimizes moisture content so that the dew point at 1 atmosphere pressure is 10 degrees Fahrenheit
below the ambient temperature.
3. Has suitable in-line air-purifying sorbent beds and filters to further ensure breathing air quality. They
shall be maintained, replaced or refurbished according to the manufacturer’s instructions.

4. Has a tag containing the most recent change date of the sorbent beds and filters and the signature of
the person authorized by the department to perform the change. This tag shall be maintained at the
compressor.
5. The breathing air shall be monitored so that the levels of carbon monoxide do not exceed 10 PPM.
6. The vendor shall provide documentation that the breathing air manufactured with the compressor is
tested at least quarterly annually and that the air sample is obtained directly at the point of transfer
from the filling system to the SCBA cylinder.
Filtering Facepiece Particulate Respirator General
A N95 respirator shall be used in pre-hospital emergency medical care applications when needed for airborne
biological pathogens. N95 respirators are designed to seal tightly against the user’s face. The following is
required whenever the use of a N95 respirator is required:
1. Written Respiratory Protection Program (RPP)
2. Qualified Administrator
3. Medical Evaluation for employees to wear an N95
4. Annual Fit Testing
5. Annual Training
Filtering Facepiece Particulate Respirator
A N95 is what is known as a filtering facepiece particulate respirator that is 95% effective and is not oil
resistant. A N95 is a particulate respirator; it does not offer protection from vapors such as formaldehyde, etc.
Respiratory Program Administrator
The duties of the Respiratory Program Administrator shall be carried out by the Assistant Chief of Logistics.
Medical Evaluation
The WMFRD has provided their chosen physician or licensed health care professional with a copy of this
operational guideline along with CFR 1910.134.
A medical evaluation shall be obtained prior to WMFRD firefighters being fit tested or required to wear a N95
respirator. This medical evaluation shall be done according to OSHA protocol.
Obtaining a clearance for a WMFRD firefighter to wear an N95 respirator may require a medical exam, but
generally, review of the OSHA questionnaire by a physician or licensed health care professional is what is
required.
A medical evaluation is not an annual requirement. It is obtained before a WMFRD firefighter is permitted to
wear the required N95 respirator and is not repeated unless there is some change that requires it.
Annual Fit Testing
WMFRD firefighters shall have a fit test prior to initial use of an N95 and annually thereafter.
Annual Training
Training on N95s shall be provided before a WMFRD firefighter wears a required N95 and annually thereafter.
Training shall cover:
1. the requirements of the Respiratory Protection Standard as it applies to N95s,
2. limits of N95s (not for vapors, etc.),

3. how to properly put on an N95,
4. how to properly remove an N95,
5. how to perform user seal tests of the N95 each time an N95 is put on, etc.
WMFRD firefighters shall have the authority to deviate from this operational guideline as necessary to deal
with situations that do not fit the parameters listed above, or if the safety of the public and/or public safety
personnel could be jeopardized if the procedures listed above are followed.

H-4 New Business

Memorandum

History

To:

Board of Directors

From:

Adam Wodtke

Date:

February 10, 2021

Subject:
New Network Firewall
____________________________________________________

The current network firewall has been in place since 2016 and was due to be replaced in 2020.
Currently the firewall is operational, but is no longer able to receive all needed updates for
security.
Project Recommendation
We recommend that West Metro Fire-Rescue District purchase two Cisco Firepower 1120 to
replace the current firewall. LOGIS recommends purchasing two so one can be used as the
primary and the other as a failover. The attached quote is state contract pricing.
This price includes all hardware, software and licensing required to complete this project.
There is $20,000 budgeted in the 2021 Technology Capitol Fund 88001 and this purchase will be
funded from this line.
Budget
2- Cisco Firepower 1120 Appliance =
Total Cost

$3608.58
=

$3608.58

PRICE QUOTE
QUOTE ID:
Revision:
CUSTOMER ID:
QUOTE DATE:
QUOTE EXPIRES:
PAYMENT TERMS:
FOB:

120 S. Riverside
Chicago, IL 60606
312.705.9700

Line #
1-1

Qty

Project: WMF Firewall Replacement
Incident #247398
Attention: Mark Mayfield
Prepared for: Logis
5750 Duluth St
Golden Valley, MN
55422-4036

Part Number

Description

Sales Person:
Phone:
Email:
ISR:
Phone:
Email:

530575
1
2979747
12/03/2020
01/04/2021
Net 30 Days
Port of Origin
Allie Pipp
(312) 547-2362
allipip@cdwg.com

Jesse Schmidt
(920) 996-3158
jesse.schmidt@cdw.com

Customer
Extended
Price

Customer
Price

List Price

State of MN Contract - 147097

Sub Total: $ 2-1

FPR1120-ASA-K9

2-2

2

FPR1120-ASA-K9

Cisco Firepower 1120 ASA Appliance, 1U

$

4,510.73 $

1,804.29 $

3,608.58

2-3

2

CAB-AC

AC Power Cord (North America), C13, NEMA 5-15P, $
2.1m

- $

- $

-

2-4

2

SF-F1KASA9.13.1-K9

Cisco ASA 9.13.1 Software for Firepower 1000
appliances

$

- $

- $

-

2-5

2

FPR1K-RM-SSD200-

Cisco Firepower 1K Series 200GB for FPR1120/1140

$

- $

- $

-

2-6

2

FPR1K-RM-ACY-KIT

Cisco Firepower 1K Series Accessory Kit for FPR1120/1140

$

- $

- $

-

2-7

2

FPR1000-ASA

Cisco Firepower 1000 Standard ASA License

$

- $

- $

-

2-8

2

FPR1K-ENC-K9

Cisco Firepower 1000 Strong Encryption
(3DES/AES)

$

- $

- $

-

Sub Total: $ 3,608.58

Quote Total: $ 3,608.58

Page 1 of 1
CUSTOMER IS RESPONSIBLE TO PAY FREIGHT CHARGES. ESTIMATED OR ACTUAL FREIGHT CHARGES ARE NOT INCLUDED IN QUOTES (UNLESS SPECIFICALLY
STATED). THIS QUOTE EXCLUDES SALES TAX (UNLESS SPECIFICALLY STATED). SALES AND SERVICES ARE GOVERNED BY THE SIGNED AGREEMENT YOU MAY
HAVE WITH CDW. IF NO SEPARATE AGREEMENT IS EFFECTIVE, THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SALES AND SERVICES ARE LIMITED TO THOSE CONTAINED IN
THE "TERMS & CONDITIONS" LINK AT http://www.cdw.com/content/terms-conditions/default.aspx. BY ORDERING OR ACCEPTING DELIVERY OF PRODUCTS OR BY
ENGAGING CDW TO PERFORM OR PROCURE SERVICES, YOU AGREE TO BE BOUND BY AND ACCEPT THOSE TERMS AND CONDITIONS. ANY ADDITIONAL OR
DIFFERENT TERMS OR CONDITIONS IN ANY FORM DELIVERED BY CUSTOMER ARE HEREBY DEEMED TO BE MATERIAL ALTERATIONS, AND NOTICE OF OBJECTION
TO THEM AND REJECTION OF THEM IS HEREBY GIVEN. THIS DOCUMENT IS CONFIDENTIAL.

